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PICTORIALS

The prerident of the Repubti. of Kenya. H.E. Hon. Dr. William Ruto (left) presentr the trophy for the Bett PerforminS state CorPoration to the

Univerrity of Embu prof. Daniel Mugendi during the offi.ial releare of the lSth Cycle Report on Evaluation of the Performan.e of Minirtriet. State

Corporationr and Tertiary lo(itutionr for the FY 2021-22. The ceremony war held at the Kenya lnternational Conference Centre (KICC). Nairobi

on Tuerday, ltrh Aprit. 2023. Looking on are Deputy Prerident. H.E. Hon. RiSathi cachagua (2nd left). UoEm Chair of Council. Dr. Kennedy

Okont o (2nd ri8ht) and UoEm Diredor, PC & lJO. Dr. Kirema Nkanata (ri8ht)
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BEST PERFORMI]IG
Itate Corporation ln the

2O2l 12022 FY Performance Evaluatlon
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ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A: Acronyms and abbrariations
(i) A-l-A - Appropriation in Aid
(ii) FY - Financial year
(iii)GoK - Government of the Republic of Kenya
(iv)ICPAK - lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya
(v) IPSAS - lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(vi)15M5 - lnformation Security Management System
(vii) MoU - Memorandum of Understanding
(viii) PC - Performance Contract
(ix)QMS - QualiV Management System
(x) SoFP - Statement of Finance Performance
(xi)UoEm - University of Embu
(xii) VC - Vice Chancellor

B: Glossary of terms
(i) Council - University of Embu Council.
(ii) Fiduciary Management - Members of Management directly entrusted with the

responsibility of financial resources of the University.
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FUNDAMENTAL STATEMENTS

Vision
A dynamic eprcentre of excellence in traintng and research for service to humantty

Mission
To generate, advance and disseminate knowledge through trarning, research. and innovation for

the development of humanity.

Philosophy
Enhancing human capacity for societal development

Core Values
lnteSrity.

lnnovativeness,
Profess iona lis m.

Teamwork
Customer focus
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL 5-|ATEMENT5 FOR TI]E YEAR ENDED 3OT'JUNE, 202'

UNIVERSITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background information

(i) Establishment
The University of Embu (UoEm) was established as Embu University College, a constituent college
of the University of Nairobi. vide Legal Notice No. 65 of 17'r J une. 2011. The College was elevated
to itJ current University status on 7'h October.2016, when it was awarded its Charter by the
President of the Republic of Kenya, His Excellency, Uhuru Kenyatta.

(ii) Commencement of operations
The University College did not start operationJ immediately after establishment, because at that

time, budget for the financial year (FY) 2011/2012 had already been approved, and the College

had not bebn allocated funds in that budget. Operations commenced. in the FY 2012/2013.

(iii) Student population
The first group of itudents was admitted in April, 2013 through Joint Admission Board. The

pioneer group had about l20 rtudenti. Student population has grown over time. rising to over

IOOO0 studenti in the 2022/2023 financial year. This remarkable growth in numbers is attributed

mainly to: quality student services, introduction of new academic and aggressive marketing of the

University.

(b) Mandate of University of Embu
The Mandate of University of Embu, as contained in the Legal Notice No. 65 of the year 2O'll,
includes:

i. To provide directly, or in collaboration with other institutions of higher learning. facilities
for university education, the integration of teaching, research and skill to the life, work and
welfare of citizens of Kenya,

ii. To participate in discovery, tranJmiJtion. and preservation and enhancement of
knowledge and to stimulate the intellectual participation of students in the economic,
social, cultural, scientific and technological development of Kenya,

iii. To provide and advance university education and training to appropriately qualified
candidates, leading to conferment of degrees and award of diplomas and certificates and
such other qualifications as Council and the Senate shall from time to time determine and
in so doing contribute to manpower needs,

iv. To conduct examinations for such academic awards as may be provided in the itatutes
pertaining to the University,

v. To examine and make proposals for new faculties, schools. institutes, departments,
resource and research centres. study courses and subjects of study.

c) University Management Board
University of Embu is run on day to day basis by the Management Board. which is headed by the
Vice-Chancellor. The Management Board comprises of the Vice-Cha ncellor. two Deputy Vice-
Chancellor, three Registrars. Head of Finance, Head of Human Resources and the Legal Officer.

d) Fiduciary Management
The management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 3Orh June. 2022 are:
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Designation

l) Vice-Chancellor
2) Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Planning. Adm. & tinance)
3) Deputy Vice-Chancellor (ARE)
4) Registrar (Vice-C ha ncelloi s Office)
5) Registrar (Planning. Adm. & Finance)
6) Registrar (Academic Research & Extension)
7) Head of Finance
8) Head of Human Resources
9) Head of Procurement
10) Legal Officer

Name
Prof. Daniel Mugendi N jiru
Prof. Eucharia Unoma Kenya
Prof. Kotut Kiplagat
Ms. Margaret Otolo
Prof. Paul Nthakanio
Prof. Jackson Wachira
Mr. Lawrence Kamonjo
Ms. Cladys Atambo
Dr. Purity Chege
Ms. Anne W. Ndegwa

e) Fiduciary oversight arrangements

(i) Parliamentary Public Accounts Committee
The Committee oversights the expenditure of public funds by Ministries. State Departmenti and
Corporationt. Commissions and: lndependent Offices, to ensure value for money in spending.
and adherence to the 6overnment Financial Regulations and Procedures. The Committee executes
its mandate on the baiis of annual and special audit reports. that are prepared by the Office of
the Auditor Ceneral. University of Embu being a public entity is oversighted, by having its
Financial Statements examined and discussed by the Committee to determine whether the affairs
of the University are managed with sound financial principles and prudent practices.

(ii) Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee of the University Council
The University has Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee of the University Council. The
Committee plays an oversight role in the University operations by independently reviewing
financial and non-financial operations of the University. and reports to the Univeriity Council on
quarterly basis. The Committee executes its mandate on the basis of regular audits conducted by
the lnternal Auditor. On quarterly basis, the lnternal Auditor tables a report to the Committee.

Siving in details the findings for audits conducted, recommendations made. and the actions taken
by the Management to address risks that were identified during audits.

(iii) Finance, Resource Mobilization and General Purposes Committee
This is the Committee of the University Council that provides financial analysis, advice and;
oversiSht of the Univeriity's budget. The mandate of the Committee as provided in its Charter.
includes:

i) To review, evaluate and recommend to Council for approval, the operating and financial
results and to ensure effective, accurate. timely and transparent disclosure of pertinent:

ii) To mobilize resources to ensure availability. systematic allocation and application of the
resourcer for the development and sustainability of the Universityl

iii) To review, evaluate and recommend for approval by Council major resource allocation
and capital investments by the University as may be found appropriate from time to time:

iv) To review on a quarterly basis, the attainment of targets and objectives ret out in the
v) To review and recommend for approval by the Council rules and procedures for control

of expenditure and administration of financial matters: and
vi) To review, evaluate and recommend for approval by the Council procurement plans and

expenditurel and disposal plans.
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(iv) Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission
The Commission is mandated to spearhead the fight against corruption, and promote sound

ethical standards and practices in Kenya. ln execution of the mandate. the Commission oversights

the University systems to ensure that they are effective in preventing corruption and unethical
practicet in the University.

f) University Headquarters
University of Embu
Meru-Nairobi Highway
P. O. Box 6-60100
Embu, lGnya

g) University of Embu contacts
P.O. Box 6-601OOEmbu. Kenya
Email: vc@ embu ni.ac. ke/info@embu ni.ac. ke
Website: www. embu ni.ac. ke
r el +2 5 42024 4 41 3 6 / +2 5 47 27 9 3 3 9 5 O / +2 5 47 88199 5 O 5

h) Bankers
i. Absa Bank of Kenya Limited
ii. Cooperative Bank of Kenya Limited
iii. Equity Bank Limited
iv. KCB Bank Kenya Limited
v. National Bank of Kenya Limited

Embu
Embu
Embu
Embu
Embu

Branch
Branch
Branch
Branch
B ranch

i) lndependent Auditors
The University being a public entity is audited by the Auditor Ceneral. The office of the Auditor
General is an independent office whose roles and responsibilities are defined under the
Conrtitution of Kenya. The postal address and the physical location of the Office of the Auditor
Ceneral is as follows:

The Auditor Ceneral
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084, CPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya.

j) Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney 6eneral
State Law Office, Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112. City Square OO2O0
Nairobi, lGnya.
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UNIVERSITY COUNCIL
During the year under review. the University Council comprised of nine members including the
Vice-C ha ncellor. who is also the Chief Executive Officer. 5ummaries of their profiles are Siven
below:

Dr. Kennedy Okong'o - Council
Chairperson

I

}J

Date of Birth: l6rh April. 1982

Holds a PhD in lnformation Systems, University of Cape Town.
M5c in ICT Policy and a BSc in Ceomatic Engineering and Geo
Information Sy(ems, JKUAT. He also holds an MBA in
lnformation Syrtemi, University of Nairobi and a Master of Arts
in Diplomacy, Moi University. Previously. he served as a

member of Council for Embu University College and South
Eastern Kenya University. Dr. Okong'o is Policy Lead, Digital
lmpact at the United Nations Foundation.

l
I

Mr. James Muchiri Ndung'u -
Representative of the Principal

Secretary, Ministry of Ed. - State

Department for Higher Education and

Research

,rI

\,/

Date of Birth: 1973

Holds a Masters

University and a

University.

degree in Education Planning. Kenyatta

Bachelor of Education degree from Moi

He has a wealth of experience in Education Management. Mr.
Ndung'u is currently serving as the Deputy Director in the
Ministry of Education.

t

Mr. Samuel Kiiru - Cabinet Secretary

Representative, National Treasury

Date of Birth: October 20.1969

Holds a Master of Arts in Economics, Carleton University,
Canada and a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from University of
Nairobi. He is currently serving as the Director of Planning and
Head of Budget Policy, The National Treasury
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CPA Felix Nthenge Kilonzi
Chairperson - Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee

t

Date of Birth: l0'h October. 1977

Holds a Masters degree in Tax and Customs Administration
from Moi University. Master of Business AdminiJtration in
Corporate ManaSement, and a Bachelor of Commerce degree
in Finance both from KCA University. He is currently pursuing
a Ph.D in business management (Accountlng option) at Moi
University, Eldoret. In addition, he is a Certified Public
Accountant of Kenya and a member of ICPAK, a full member
of Kenya lnstitute of Management (MKIM) and a Certified
Secretary (CS). Mr. Kilonzi has 22-year experience in accounting
and financial manaSement. He is currently serving as a member
of public sector accountantJ committee of ICPAK Council and
a subject matter expert at KRAi Kenya School of Revenue
Administration (KESRA). He is a reviewer with Africa Tax and
Customr Review (ATCR) journal

Ms. Agnes Wanjuki Ndwiga, HSC,
CDFA
Chairperson - Human Resource

Development and Academic Affairs
Committee

Date of Birth; 4th September 1962

Holds a MaJter of Science Degree in Development Finance
from Reading University, United Kingdom and a Bachelor of
Commerce Degree in Business Administration from the
University of Nairobi. She is currently pursuing a Doctorate
Degree in Development Studies. she is a financial sector expert
with over 2O years' experience. Ms. Ndwiga was awarded the
head of state commendation (HSC) by the President of the
Republic of Kenya in recognition of her outstanding
contribution in financing of SMEs through her work in the
Finance industry and public sector board roles. She is currently
serving as a 6eneral Manager. Corporate and Public sector
banking, Equity Croup. 5he is a member of the Endowment
Fund Board of Trustees, University of Embu. Ms. Ndwiga
previously served in the Embu University College Council.

CPA James Njeru Kaburu

Chairman - Finance. Resource
Mobilization and 6eneral Purposes
Committee

Date of Birth: 2^d May, 1969

Holds a Master of Business Adminirtration (MBA) in Strategic
Management and a bachelor'J degree in business

administration, Accounting, both from the United States
lnternational University (U5lU) and a Global Diploma in
Engagement and productivity Coaching from CDI-Africa
Coaching 6roup Iimited. In addition, he is a Certified Public
Accountant of Kenya and a full member of The lnstitute of
Certified Public Accountant of Kenya flCPAK). He has a wealth
of experience spanning over 25 years in financial services
sector, having worked with a number of Local and
International banking institutions. He is currently serving as the
6roup Chief Risk Officer, Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited.
Mr. Kaburu served in the l,' University of Embu Council.
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Ms. Karen Basiye ltela
Member of Council

Date of birth: l Trt' November, 1978

Holds a Joint Master of Environmental Science. Policy and

Management degree from Lund University (Sweden),

University of Manchester (UK). Central European University
(Hungary) and University of the Aegean (Greece)

www.mespom.eu and a Bachelor of Environment Science

degree from Kenyatta University. Currently at Safaricom. Ms.

Basiye leads the Sunainability agenda for the company. 5he is

passionate about the interplay between People, Purpose and
Profit. She has a wealth of experience in Environmental
ManaSement Systems and Policies. Ms. Basiye served in the I'r

University of Embu Council.

Ms. Lilian Njeri Munene -
Member of Council

Date of Birth: 9'h March, 1978

Holds a Master of Science in lnternational Management from
Oxford Brookes University. England and a Bachelor of Sciences

(Hons) in Business lnformation Syrtems from North London
University. England. Ms. Munene is an international
management professional with proven linkages skills and
understanding of the research and innovation financing
landscape. She has a wealth of experience in governance since

2O05. Ms. Munene is currently working with Higher Ed

Partners as the Vice President University Partnerships - East

Africa.

Prof. Daniel Mugendi - Vice-

Chancellor. and Secretary to the
Council

Date of Birth: 8'" September l96l

Holds a Doctorate degree in Agroforestry. University of
Florida, Gainesville. FL, USA. Maiter of Science degree in Crop
Science/Horticulture. Univeriity of Nairobi, and a Bachelor of
Science degree in Forestry from Moi University. Prof. Mugendi

has a wealth of experience in University Management. He is

also a prolific researcher and has been recognized by being

ranked position 12 best researcher in Kenya and Position 628

in Africa in lhe 2022 World ScientiJt and University Rankings.

AD Scientific lndex ranking which ranks individual researchers

in Universities across the world. He is the Vice-Chancellor.

University of Embu and the Secretary to the University Council.

UNIVERSITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTs FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE, 2023
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UNIVERSITY MANAGEMENT BOARD

The following are the members who served in the University Management Board during the year

under review:

Prof. Daniel Mugendi

Vice-Chancellor

Holds a PhD in Agroforestry from University of Florida,
Cainesville, Florida, U5A;
ln addition, he has a Master of Science Degree in Crop Science
from the University of Nairobi; and Bachelor of Science (BSc)

Degree in Forestry from Moi University.

Prof. Eucharia U. Kenya

Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Planning Adminlshatlon & Flnance)

Holds a PhD in Applied Entomology from River's State

University of Science & Technology, Nigeria. ln addition she

hai a Master Degree in Medical Parasitology and a Bachelor
of Science in Zoology from University of Nigeria.

Prof. Klplagat Kotut

Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Academic Research & Extension)

Holds a PhD in Phytoplankton Ecology. a Master of Science
Degree in Plant Ecology. and a Bachelor of Education (Science)

Ms. Margaret Otolo

Registrar, Office of the Vice-Chancellor

Holds a Master of Business Administration Degree and B.Ed
(Arts) Degree from Kenyatta University. Presently pursing
Doctorate Jtudiet in Entrepreneurship.
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Prof. Jackson Wachira

ReSittrar, Academic Research & Extension

Holds a PhD in Chemistry. a Maiter of Science Degree in
Chemistry and Bachelor of Education (Science) Degree. all
frorn Kenyat ta University.

a I
Prof. Paul Njiruh Nthakanio

Registrar, Planning, Administration and Finance

Holds a PhD in Genetics and Plant Breeding from Zhejiang
University. China. ln addition. he holds a Master of Science
Degree in Cenetics and Plant breeding. and a Bachelors Degree
in Agronomy from Zhejiang Agricultural University.

Mr. Lawrence lGmonjo

Head of Finance

Holds a Master Degree in Finance. and a Bachelors of
Education (Arts); both from Kenyatta University. In addition,
he is a Certified Public Accountant of Kenya.

UNIVERsITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OT3 JUNE, 2023
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COUNCIL CHAIRMAN'5 REPORT

University of Embu is central to achieving national economic development, as a provider of education,
research and extenJion services. The University offers a wide variety of market driven academic
proSrammes, ranging from the certificate to doctorate levels.

The financial year 2022/2023 wal the year that the global economy was expected to recover from the
effects adverse effects of the COVID Pandemic. However. the Ukraine-Rursia conflict coupled with
prolonged draught in the Country, and other uncertainties that were experienced during the year slowed
down the recovery process. The problem was exacerbated by depreciation of the Kenya shilling against
major world currencies, resulting to high cost of most consumer goods and Jervices.

Despite the difficulties that were experienced, activitieJ of the University were carried out in a manner that
fully met public expectations with regard to advancement of education, research and dissemination of
knowledge. The University is committed to continual enSaSement with her various stakeholders, to
promote suJtainability, by adopting practices that are responsive to their needs.

Funding by the Govemment of Kenya
Funding to the Univertity during the year under review was reduced from a total of KES 703,865,333
received in the FY 2021/2022, to KEs 656,351,636. This representr an aSgregate reduction of 6.80/o. as

shown below.

Tvpe of Fant Amount in KES (2022/2023) Amount tn KES (2O21nO22) o/o change
Recurrent 628.750.182 628,865,333 (o.02)
Development 27.601.454 75,000.000 (63.2)
Total fundinc 656,351,636 703,565,333 (6.8)

Key activitier during the financial year under revier,v
The following are some of the key activitieJ that took place at the University, during the year:

i. Held the seventh graduation ceremony in September, 2022, where 1147 graduands were awarded
degrees, diplomas and certificates.

ii. The University in partnership with the Embu County Covernment and the Kenya National Chamber
of Commerce and lndustries, hosted a successful Mega Business Expo between 4rh & 5'h April, 2023.
The Expo brought toSether exhibitors from various parts of the Country, who showcased their
business skills and technologies.

iii. ln partnership with the National and County Government, the University horted a week-long Micro.
Small and Medium Enterprise Exhibition from 26th May to 30th May. 2023. The President of the
Republic of Kenya H.E Hon. Dr. William Samoei Ruto was the Chief 6uest during the opening
ceremony of the Expo.

iv. Official opening of the New Adminirtration Block in December.2022 bythe President ofthe Republic
of Kenya, His Excellency Hon. Dr. William Ruto. The six level Adminirtration Block sits on a one-and-
a-half-acre piece of land and hosts over 100 offices, 9 boardrooms and l5 lecture halls

v. Held the lnternational Mother Language Day celebrations in February. 2022, focusing on the potential
role of technology in advancing multilingual education and supporting the development of quality
teaching and learning for all.

Achievements
Despite the hard economic realities, the UniverJity recorded 4o/o and 2olo growth in revenues and total
atsett retpectively during the year under review. Other remarkable achievementJ that were realized,
included the following:

(i) Ranking the best performing State Corporation in Kenya, in the 2021/2022 Financial Year,
Performance ContractinS cycle. The results were announced by the President of the Republic of
Kenya, H.E. Hon. Dr. William Ruto, in a ceremony was held in April. 2023.

(ii) Emerging the top ranking University in Kenya, in the Sub-Saharan Africa University Rankings
conducted by Times Higher Education CIHE). The ranking ryrtem was specifically tailored to 5ub-
5aharan Africa and considered a number of performance indicators acrosr five pillars including:
resourceJ and finances; acceJJ and fairness: teaching skillsl student engagement; and Africa impact.
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The University of Embu excelled in the arpects of quality teaching. student engagement and Africa
impact, and was placed in the l6r" position in Sub-Saharan Africa.

(iii) Webometrics ranking in January 2022 the University was ranked position l2 oul ol 125 institutions
of higher learning in Kenya

(iv) Recorded I i .3olo growth in rtudent population. from 9857 itudents to 10975
(v) Craduated 1147 students in September. 2022 during the seventh graduation ceremony. The number

comprises of l6 Ph.Ds, 10 Masters, 8 post graduate diplomas,951 Bachelors. i35 diplomas and 27
certificates.

(vi) lmplementation of l5O 9OO1:2015 Quality Management Systems and l50 27OO1:2013 lnformation
Security Management Systems. A Surveillance |SMS audit that wai conducted by the Kenya Bureau of
5tandards in )une.2022 revealed that the University's manaSement syitem is effective in attaining the
specified objectives.

Key Challenges
The following are the main challenges that were faced by the University during the year:

i. Escalating coit of operation, occasioned by increased prices of mort consumer products
ii. lnadequate financial reiourcei to cater for all the planned recurrent, as well as capital activities. The

Council is in full support of the new funding model for Universities. and believes that the model will
sufficiently address financial challenges currently faced by the public universities.

iii. Reduced funding through a budget cut. During the year under review. development budget of the
University was reduced by 60.60/o from KES 70 million to KES 27.601.454

iv. Stiff competition from other inititutions, and especially the bigger, and more established institutions.
The University sector has become very-competitive, with the older and more endowed inJtitutionJ
enjoying a Sreater advantage.

v. Difficulties achieving the projected student numbers, due to reduced national catchment that mainly
depends on performance in the KCSE examinationi.

ln spite of the challenges faced, we remained keen in ensuring business continuity. by minimizing impact
of disruptions on our operations. We have in place. a well stipulated risk management framework to
address sustainability challenges. ln addition. the University has reliable stratesies for tapping emerging
opportunities in the environment we operate in. Looking ahead. we will continue implementing our key
priorities. and finding new wayJ of dealing with new risks and challenges. We rely on our operational
excellence to implement and improve our stratesies to achieve business growth.

Future outlook
The projects and activities undertaken during the year are aligned to our 2018 - 2028 Strategic Plan.
lmplementation of the Plan and in light of the new funding model for universities, will see the University
achieve: financial stability and suitainability. expanded infrastructure, good governance, viable
partnerships and increased collaborations. The Plan clearly stipulates the aspirationr of the University in
the realization of Kenya Vision 2030 and internal growth potential. lt is currently under review, to align
it to the Bottom-up Economic Transformation Agenda.

Appreciation
On behalf of the University Council, I wish to expresi my appreciation to the Government of Kenya for
the support accorded during the year. My deep gratitude Soer to all the members of the University Council
for unwavering commitment and strong Sovernance of the University's activities. To the University
Management and all memberJ of rtaff. your teamwork and dedication in service delivery is highly
appreciated. Finally, lwish to thank all other stakeholders for the confidence they have in us, and for
5upportinS the University

r,) /
Dr. Kennedy Okong'o
Chairman, University of Embu Council
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REPORT OF THE VICE.CHANCELLOR
During the year under review, University of Embu like many other orSanizations faced the unexpected challenge of
high cost of conJumer productr. a rise that was occasioned by disruption of the global rupply chaln. ar a result of the
Ukraine war. However. owing to the existing and risk manaSement mechanisms and the austerity measures that were
initituted, coupled with hard work and resilience of our committed staff, we were able to realize a remarkable success

in the execution of our mandate. Our staff are professional. hardworking. proactive and always making tremendous
efforts to improve their service levels.

As usual, the University prides itself in maintaining prudent management, and persistent culture of meeting and
exceeding expectations of our cuitomers. The University fraternity remained committed to maintaining high
performance standards in ethically driven 5ystemJ, processes and procedures. We are proud of having very supportive
stakeholders, who have contributed immenJely to the iucceii we have so far realized. They have been of Sreat help
in shaping the Seneral direction, and expansion of the University. We have continued engaging with them. in a bid
to maintaining a favourable operating environment.

NON - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(a) Academic schoolJ and programme,
During the year under review, University of Embu had Jix academic schools, namely: School of Pure and applied
5ciences, School of Agriculture, School of Education and social sciences, School of Bu5inesJ and economics, 5chool of
Nursing, School of Law. ln addition, the Univerrity has a TVET inititute that offers certificate and diploma courses.

ln the pipeline are eiSht new schools namely: School of Pharmacy, School of Public Health,School of Medicine.
School of Engineering and Technology, School of Built Environment. School of Computing & Mathematics, School
of Journaliim and School of Humanities & Social Sciences. The University has one hundred and seventeen academic
programmei on offer. as displayed in the table below:

Sdrool
Number of
departmentt

Number of.csdemlc programmeJ with re8lJtercd rtudentt

Certlficate Diploma Post Graduat€ dlploma B.drelor MrJter Ph.D

Pure & Applied Sciencet 4 2 o t3 12 8

Agriculture 2 0 3 0 7 8 6
Education & Soc Scienaet 2 o 5 I 5 5
BuJinelr & Econ 2 2 2 0 7 3 2

Nu15int 4 0 I 0 o
3 0 0 0 I 0 0

UoEm TVETI 5 12

SUB-TOTAL l8 I 25 I 36 30 t7
TOTAL 117

(b) Rankings Conducted by Times Higher Education

University of Embu emerged as the top ranking Univerrity in Kenya in the Sub-Saharan Africa University Rankingj
conducted by Times Higher Education fl-HE). This distinguished recognition confirms the University's unwavering
commitment to becoming a dynamic epicenter of excellence in training and research. The ranking rystem wa5

specifically tailored to 5ub-Saharan Africa and considered a number of performance indicatorJ across five pillars
including: resources and financesl access and fairness; teachinS skilli; Jtudent engagement: and Africa impact. Each of
the aforementioned pillars had a number of metrics assigned to it includinB the impact on the United Nations
Suitainable Development 6oals. Evidence-based data that wai uied for ranking, was provided by the in(itution and
validated by THE. The rankinS system further involved a student survey that collected opinioni of more than 20.000
students from the 88 universities which participated in this inaugural ranking. The students responded to quertionj
touching on the quality of teaching and learning, campus life experiences, professional development and mental
health counseling, among others. The University of Embu excelled in the aspects of quality teaching, Jtudent
engagement and Africa impact. and was placed in the 16th position in Sub-Saharan Africa. The University's excellent
performance is as a result of iti commitment to maintaining high quality education, which is iupported by robust
curricula, qualified faculty and innovative research and teachinS methodologies. The lnstitution prioritizes
personalized mentorinS of studentJ, leadership development and career counselling, to nurture well-rounded
graduates.

(c) Student Enrolment
UoEm is recognized widely for quality teachinS, research and welfare services for students Our main focuJ is to pursue
the University's vision, which; is "A dynamic epicentre of excellence in training and research for service to humanity".
Cuided by the vision, the University iees an opportunity in the growing Slobal population and demand for univerrity
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education' and has pro8ressively increased enrolment capacity to meet the demand. By innovating in digital and
blended products, we continued responding to the changing needs of our rtudents, with the aim of improving
enrolment and learning outcomes. During the year under review, the University recorded a 11.3olo growth in student
population. from 9857 in the FY 2Q21/2O22 studente to 10975.

(d) Student welfare
University of Embu recoSnises student leadership as a key factor in its governance processes. An active student Council
(University of Embu Students Atsociation) in in place. mandated to look into all student welfare matters. Elections of
the 6"'University of Embu students Arsociation (UE5A) Council were held. and the new leaders sworn ln on 24,r,
March.2023 at the Univertity of Embu. The Council works closely with the UniverJity Management. to ensure
matters appertaining to student welfare are addressed in a rati5factory manner.

ln addition. Univerrity has an Endowment Fund and a Financial Aid Kitty that give financial rupport in form of
bursaries. to Jtudents with financial challenges. The proceis of awarding bursaries is normally done competitively by
the student Welfare Committee of the University. uring the approved criteria.

(e) University of Embu Endowment Fund
The Endowment Fund war formally launched in October 2018 at the University of Embu grounds by H.E. William
Ruto. ECH. MB5. The Fund ls all inclusive. embracinS permanent. quasi and term endowments. to allow endowing
partners endow in any area of their interest. Fund raising mainly targetr bequests. donations. gifts and investment
returns. A Board ofTrustees appointed by the University Council is in place. and is respon5ible for mobilizing resources
for the Fund and ensuring 5ufficient invertment returnr.

As stipulated in the Policy of the Fund. principal amount ir invested, and only the intereit is expended to a55irt
beneficiaries. During the year under review. KES 2.628.443 was disbursed to 284 University of Embu needy students.
in form of bursaries. This is equivalent to 5oolo of the investment income of the Fund. The gross value of the Fund as
at 3O'h June. 2023 was KES 4'1,998.989 Various fundraising activities are on the pipeline, aimed at growing the Fund.

(f) Staff welfare
UoEm over time. realited Sreat succets through its hardworking, talented and professional staff. They have
conJistently upheld culture of innovation. ethicr. and integrity which has created a unique value to our customers
and stakeholderJ. Their wellbeing it alway5 part of our biggest priorities. We are committed to inveJting sufficiently
in staff welfarg. in a bid to enhanclnt their morale. The University has a medical scheme, that covers the principal
member and their immediate families i.e. spouse and children. The rcheme caters for cost of hospitalization and
treatment. Work environment at the Univer5ity is conducive. and rtaff intererts adequately taken care of. Necelsary
tupport i5 provided to variour staff groups. JUch as 5taff choir and sports team5.

The University has a well-itructured performance based staff training programme for sharpening their skills and
enhance their Productivity. 5kills gapr were ldentified through a training needr arsessment process which involve all
staff.

(g) Performance Contracting (PC)
Univeriity of Embu ranked the best performing 5tate Corporation in Kenya. in the 2021/2022 Financial Year.
Performance Contracting cycle. The results were announced by the President of the Republic of Kenya, H.E. Hon.
Dr. William Ruto. in a ceremony was held in April. 2023. For the third year running, the University emerged the
best performing public university in Kenya. We have consirtently maintained an excellent score in performance
contracting Jince the financial yea( 2O14/2O15. Displayed in the table below are the PC Jcores of the University for
the la5t seven years.

2015A6

t.7 3s7
(Ex@llent)

Self-evaluation for the year 2022/2023 that that waJ conducted internally by the Directorate of Performance
Contracting and l5O placed the University at excellent score. The actual performance will be determined after the
final evaluation by the Performance Management and Co-ordination Office.

(h) l50 certification
University of Embu is both l5O 9001:2015 (15M5) and l5O 27001:20i3 (QM5) certified. Adoption of both syrtems it
a deliberate and strategic decision that wa, made to improve the overall business performance. and provide a sound
baJis for 5uJtainability. During the year under review. the Management continued conducting the University business
with close adherence to the l50 standards. policies and procedures.

2016n7 2021/2022 2022nO23
$<ore 2.O334

(Ex.ellent)
1.4762
(Excellent)

201744 2018/19
1.9965
(Ex.ellent)

r.9198
(Exc€llent)

2019/20 2020/2021
2.125
(Excellent)

'L9290
(Ex(ellent)

1.7272
(Ex.ellent)
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Suryeillance QMS and l5M5 auditr that war conducted by the Kenya bureau of standards in June. 2023 revealed that
on overall. the University hat adequately implemented her Quality Management System (QM5) and that there it

evidence of effectiveness and continual improvement.

(i) Future outlook
The University is in her fifth year of implementing its ten years strateSic PIan (2018 - 2O28), which provides a road
map that will guide our focus over the remaining five years. The Plan has the following six key focus areas:

i. Development &. enhancement of lnfrattructure and security, for effective service delivery.
ii. Enhancement of human capital management through the integration of bett practice in the recruitment,

management and optimizalion of the workforce.
iii. Promotion of effective Aovernance and leadership practicet.
iv. Expansion of capacity of Univenity operationt and services.

v. Ettablithment and expansion of linkages, partnerships and collaborations with other inttitutiont.
vi. Achievement of financial nability and enhancement of long-term sustainability.

We remain optiminic that the economic environment will remain conducive for implementation of the Plan. The
Univeriity Management is alive to itr fiduciary responsibility of traniparent mobilization and utilization of resources,

and ensure full implementation of the Plan.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Business Performance
The University realised gross revenue of KES I,100,841,255 during the year, which is an improvement from
1.056.527,735 reported in the FY 2021/2O22. Breakdown of the recorded revenue during the year is given below.

Detsilr Amount ln KE (20222023) Amdunt ln KES (2O21l2O22) Chlnre (KEs) Chante
Recurrent qranB (CoK) 628.7 50.182 628.865.333 015.t 5) (0.02)

Amortization of development grantt 26.550.910 27.694.476 0.147.966\ (4.14)

lnternallv qenerated revenues 445.540.163 399.963.526 45.576.637 I t.40
Totll tundlnc r,r00,841,255 I .056.527 .735 44,531,267

Expenditure for the year decreased by KES 8,963.504 from KES 1,1O1,753,142 incurred in the FY 2Q21/2O22 to KES

1,092,789,638. This is equivalent to a reduction of 0.81olo. On overall. the Univerrity registered a net surplus of KEs

7.8 million which is an improvement from a net loss of KE5 46.8 million recorded in lhe FY 2021/2022.

6roMh in aiJett
During the year, the value of total arrets increared by 2.O3o/o. from KES 3.883 billion to KES 3.962 billion. Current
asrets increased by 15.81 o/o from KES 162.25 million to KE5 187.90 million. while the non-current arseti increased by
1.43o/o f rom KE5 3.72 billion to KES 3.77 billion.

fii) Challenges
The major challenge that University has faced since its inception i5 that of insufficient financial resources to cater for
the recurrent as well as development needs. This is mainly attributed to: inadequate budgetary allocations.
unexpected budget cuts and decreasing number of self-sponsored students.

During the year under review, development budget was reduced from KEs 70 million to KE5 27.6 million, equivalent
to 60.57o/o reduction. The University faces an acute problem of inadequate hostel facilities. The available capacity
can only accommodale 6.80/o of the total itudent population. With the New Funding Model currently being rolled
out with effect from the FY 2023/2024, the financial (ability of the University is expected to improve. considering
that every student will be expected to pay fees at the prevailinS market rate.

Appreciation
On behalf of the Univerrity Management, I wish to express my sincere gratitude to the Univertity Council for their
support and guidance, without which the achievement so far made would not have been possible. My appreciation
goei to the University Management and all members of staff, for hard work which led to remarkable performance
during the year. lt is truly a Sreat privilege to me, working with you as your leader. I also would like to thank our
esteemed studentr, customers and other stakeholders for supporting growth of the University businers.

Prof. Daniel Mugendi Njiru, (Ph.D)

VICE-CHANCELLOR
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STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES FOR THE
FINANCIAL YE AR 2022 /2023

University of Embu has six strategic pillars and six objectives in its 2Ol8-2028 Strategic Plan. Each
pillar has one objective. The strategic pillars are as follows:

Pillar I : lnfrastructure
Pillar 2: Human Capital Management
Pillar 3: Leadership and Covernance
Pillar 4: Operations and Services

Pillar 5: Collaborations and Partnerships

Pillar 6: Resources Mobilization and Sustainability

The University develops its annual work plans based on the above six pillar. Assessment of the
Council's performance againtt its annual work plans is done on a quarterly basis. The University
achieved its targetJ set for the financial year 2022/2023 in all its strategic pillars, as indicated in
the table below:

Pillar 3

Strategic

Pillar
Objective Key Performance

lndicators
ActivitieJ Achievements

Pillar I 1) Completion
Certificate

ConJtruct and

furni5h Tuition
Blocks

2) Completion
certificate

Construction of Tuition Block

from 79.60/o to 85o/o

Recruit qualified

5ta ff

Enhance Staff

Motivation for
improved
performance

Develop and

operationalize
enabling
regulations.

Recruited 27 slaff and l7 interns

during the year.

336 members of rtaff received

commendation letterJ for their
exemplary performance.

To promote effective
6overnance and
leadership practices.

Approved
Policies

One policy was developed. and

six revised during the year. at

shown below:

(l) Newly developed policy
5uccession Management Policy

(ll) Revised policies
i) GenderMainrtreamins
ii) Work Place, Alcohol & Drug

AbuJe Prevention
iii) Transport Policy
iv) Anti-Corruption & Whirtle-

blower
v) Extension
vi) Research

Risk Mana ement
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Pillar t I fo L*pani tf,e capacity I npprJved lft of
of the Univerrity
operations and services

To esta blish and expand
linkages. partnerrhipJ

and collaborations with
other institutions.

Signed MoU with
l5 organizations

for mutual

benefit

E(ablish linkages f

1607 teaching units uploaded in
the e'learninS portal as follows:
Semester 1- 707 units
Semesterl -749 units
Semelter I l5l unitt
Seventeen (15) MoUs were

rigned between the University

and other entities during the
year.

teach ing Units

uploaded.

lmplement

inteSrated E-

learning

Approved budget

The University has overtime realised Sreat success in Performance Contract (PC) activities, as well
as in the implementation of the Strategic Plan (5P). The implementation is undertaken as part of
the day to day business of the University. where activities are cascaded to all administrative levels.

To ensure ieamlesJ implementation of the Plan, most of the annual PC targets are drawn from it.
There is a very close relationship between the SP and Performance contract (PC) as explained
below:

i) Part ll of the PC entails the Vision. Mission and Strategic objectiver of the University, all of
which are drawn from the 5P.

ii) All the targets in the PC are drawn from the 5P and seek to contribute towards the
achievement of the stipulated objectives. For example, Section A of the PC is on Financial
Stewardship & Discipline, which addresses the 5P objective on achieving financial stability
and enhancing long term 5ustainability.

iii) lnfrastructural projects in the PC seek to address the SP objective on developing and
enhancing infrastructure syrtemJ for effective service delivery.

iv) The objective on establishing and expanding linkages, partnerships and collaborations with
other institutions is addressed by tarSetr on the core mandate section of the PC which
include establishment of industry linkages, community empowerment and attracting
research grants among otheri.

v) Similarly. the objective on enhancement of human capital management is a target in section
C of the PC. which is on various crosJ cuttinS iriues touching on staff and students including
competence development.

Conclusion
The excellent annual performance recorded by the University over the years is measured against
performance targets contained in the negotiated annual PCs, 5P. policies, service delivery charter
and Government directives. The Strategic Plan and Performance Contract are closely intertwined.
in that, the former is implemented through annual performance contractJ.

Pillar 5

Pillar 6 To achieve Financial

Stability and enhance

long term sustainability.

Received A-l-A and

6overnment
capitation

KES 445,540.163 was generated

internally while KES 656,351,636

was received from the

Sovernment. The entire amount
was fully utilized in service

delivery, and development of
infraitructure.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

lntroduction
University of Embu adheres to good corporate governance by observing high standards of ethical
and moral behavior, acting in the best interest of the institution and recognizing interests of all
stakeholders. We are alive to fact that the importance of good corporate governance is to facilitate
effective and prudent management that can deliver the long-term succeJJ of the University. Our
Council is responsible for the overall governance and is committed to upholding good
Sovernance. as a key contributor to excellent performance and prosperity. The University has an
effective governance framework comprising of strong internal control systems and processes,
underpinned by the institutional core values, policies and culture.

Corporate Governance Statement

University of Embu is committed to upholding good corporate governance, and attaches very
high value to the generally accepted corporate governance practices. We recognize the
importance of applying high standards of governance, as a key contributor to excellent
performance and prosperity. The University has established adequate and reliable systemi to
ensure that high standards of corporate governance are maintained at all levels.

These systems have enabled the University to build trust with its stakeholders, and also promote
its financial viability. lt entails enhancement of sustainable value for the stakeholders, through
adoption of ethically driven business operations. The University Council is committed to
strengthening stakeholder relations as we continue to build a responsive and dynamic business
that takes into account the emerging technological advancements and social trends.

The Council is at the forefront in inculcating the culture of good corporate governance. lt ensures
that corporate governance guidelines and best practices are followed in the delivery of the
University mandate, in addition to ensuring that University's affairs are managed transparently.
and in compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory frameworks.

University Council
The Council has nine members. comprising of six independent non-executive members including
the Chairman: two non-independent members representinS Ministry of Education and The
National Treasury and; and one executive member who is also the Vice-Chancellor.

i) Roles and functions
The Council is charged with the responsibility of protecting long-term interests of all the
stakeholders of the University. The Council provides leadership and oversight to management.
for continued viability and JUstainability of the University's operations. Detailed respons ibilities
of the University Council are provided in the University of Embu Statutes and in the Council
Charter.

ii) Appointment
The Council that served during the year under review was appointed by the Cabinet Secretary,
Ministry of Education. Names of the Council were published in Kenya Gazette Vol. CXXII-No.
197, of 6th November. 2020.
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iii) lnduction and capacity building for Council members
Every year, members of the Council undergo capacity development training to enhance their
knowledge in areas such as corporate governance, leadership and other relevant fields. Regular
training is necessary in equipping the members with the requisite knowledge and skills to
effectively discharge their rerpons ibilitiei. lnduction training for the current Council was
undertaken between I B'h and 20th August. 2021, by the Kenya School of Covernment. During the
FY under review. a capacity building workshop for Council was held between 26'h and 30'h July,
2022.

iv) Succession planning of the University Council
University of Embu Council has established mechanisms to develop Council members' skills. to
ensure Seamless business continuity in the event a member's exit. Members are rotated annually
between the Committees and as part of succession planning, they are assigned more than one
committees, to expoie them to various operations of the University. ln addition, trainings are
designed to cover a wide range of fields. relevant to the University governance to help the
members serve in different capacities within the Council.

v) Conflia of interert
Council members are obligated to fully disclose any direct or indirect conflict of interest which
comes to their attention. As a routine, "Conflict of interest" appears as an item in the agenda of
every meeting of the Council. Each Council member indicates by signing, whether they are
conflicted in any way or not in the conflict of interest register.

vi) Remuneration of University of Embu Council
Council members are entitled to sitting allowance for every meeting attended. Each member also
receives lunch allowance, accommodation allowance and mileage reimbursement where
applicable, using the set ratei for state corporations. ln addition. the Chairman of the University
Council is paid a monthly honorarium and telephone allowance, also at the rates approved for
state corporations.

vii)Meetings of the University Council
Annual work plan of the Council is prepared and circulated to the members in advance. The
Council holds regular meetings on quarterly basis. However, special meetings may be called
whenever the need arises. During the FY 2022/2023, the Council held four meetings. Members
received adequate notice and documentation on issues to be discussed, in good time, to enable
them prepare for the meetings. Attendance of meetings by the members both in the full Council
as well as in the committees is given in the table that follows.

S/No. Committee Members Number of
meetinSt held

Number of
meetingt
attended

l) Full Council

'1. Dr. Kennedy Okong'o - Chairperson
2. Mr. Samuel Kiiru
3. Mr. Jamei Muchiri
4. Mr. Felix Nthenge Kilonzi
5. Ms. Karen Basiye ltela
6. Ms. Lilian Njeri Munene
7. Mr. James Njeru Kaburu
8. Ms. Agnes Wanjuki Ndwiga
9. Prof. Daniel Mugendi - Secretary

4
4
4
4
3

4
4
4
4

4
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Finance. Resource
Mobilization &
Ceneral Purposes
Committee

l. Mr. Felix Nthenge Kilonzi
2. Mr. 5amuel Kiiru
3. Mr. James Muchiri
4. Mr. Agnes Wanjuki Ndwiga
5. Mr. James Njeru Kaburu
6. Ms. Lilian Njeri Munene
7. Prof. Daniel Mugendi 5ecretar

5

2
5
5
2
3
3

4
2
4
4
2
2
2
4

2)

3)
Audit. Risk and
Compliance
Committee

Ms. Karen Basiye ltela
Mr. 5amuel Kiiru
Mr. JameJ Muchiri
Mi. Agner Wanjuki Ndwiga
Mr. Felix Kilonzi
Mr. James Njeru Kaburu

4

Mr. Francis N re - Secretar

4)

Human Resource
Development and
Academic Affairs
Committee

Ms. Lilian Njeri Munene
Mr. Samuel Kiiru
Mr. James Muchiri
Mr. James Njeru Kaburu
Mr. Agnes Wanjuki Ndwiga
Mr. Karen Bariye ltela
Prof. Daniel Mu endi - secretar

Note: Rotalion of Council member between .ommitteee war done during the year. with the change, taking effect from the month of lanuary,
2023. Thouth each commiilee held four meering!. memberr who were affected by the rotation attended two meetinSr in their former committeer.
and two meetinSs in the new oneJ.

Ethical standards

University of Embu conducts her operations in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, and upholds integrity in the delivery of her mandate. We are committed to
supporting anti-corruption efforts through institutiona lization of good corporate Eovernance. The
University collaborates with the relevant Sovernment agencies to ensure legal compliance.

The Human Resources department and the lntegrity Committee conducts regular staff
ienJitizations on integrity to promote ethical behaviour. ln addition, corruption risk assessment is

regularly conducted and corruption prevention meatureJ enforced to curb the vice. The University
has a robust mechanism for receiving unethical conducti. Analysis and investigation of the
reported cares is normally done objectively, and appropriate actioni instituted.

I

2

4
5

6
7

1.

2
5

4
5
6

7

Prof. Daniel Mugendi Njiru, (Ph.D)

VICE-CHANCELLOR

Date: 25rh Odober,2023

2
4
4
2
2
2
3

4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Jection provides an analysis of performance for the year under review.

(a) Funding from the Goremment of Kenya (GoK)

The 6overnment of Kenya remained the main financier of the Univertity, through disbursement of
recurrent and development grants. To supplement the grants from the 6oK, the University also generated

revenues internally. from sources such as fees. hire of facilities, Farm and Catering sales. During the FY

2022/2023, the University received a total of KES 656,351,636 from the Government of Kenya as shown
in the table below:

C!terory Amount in KEs (2022./2023) oh

Re@rrent grantr (6oK) 62a.750.1A2 95.8

DeveloDment qrantj 27 .601.454 4.2

Totrl tundlns 656,351,636 r00

6rants received from the GoK over the last six years are presented below.

(i) Prerentation based on type of funding

GRANTS FROM THE GOVERNMENT OF KENYA

2017nO15 2018nO.!9 2019nO20

r Recurrent grantr (KES)

2OAOaOT 2O2lnO22 2O22nO23

r Development Srants (KE5)

(li) Presentation based on total Funding
The table below displays the total funds received from the CoK over the last five years

Year 2017nO18 20tanotg 2019/2020 2020no21 2O2t/2O22 Po22no23

Totsl tunding (KES) 706.109.219 740,107,314 837.210,666 67 4.115.97 s 703.865.333 16s6.35r.636

Totalfunding from the GoK

.20t7 /2O1A .201A12019 2019/2020 .2020/2021 12021/2022 2022/2023
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(b) lnternally 6enerated Revenues (A-l-A)
lnternally Senerated revenues increased to KES 445 million during the year. from KES 399 million that was
realized in the year 2021/2022. The revenue was generated from various sources, such as: tuition fees.
rental propertiei, farm. graduation fee. hire of facilities and catering services.

INTERNALLY GEN ERATED REVENUES (KEs)

202212021

202712022

2O2Ol2021

2Or9l2O2O

2018l2Ot9

2OL7l2ot8

2OL7lzOra .2Ota/20L9 2019/2020 r 2O2Ol2O2r 2O2r/2O22 202212023

(c) Total revenue
Total revenue for the year is the summation of the recurrent grants that were received from the
Government of Kenya, amortization of capital grants and the revenue generated internally from various
lources. Total revenue for the year increased by 4.2o/o from KE5 1.056 billion to KES l.t billion. The increase
ii attributed to increaJed revenue from internal sources.
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(d) Expenses for the year
Expenditure for the year decreased by 0.8olo, from KE5 1.102 billion to KES 1.093 billion.
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(e) Total assets

During the year, value of the total assets increased by 2o/o fron KE5 3.88 billion to KES 3.96 billion. The
growth is attributed to the capital investment made by the University during the year.
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(f) Performance Contraaing (PC)

University of Emb,u ranked the best perforrning Stale Corporation in Kenya. in the 2021/2022 Financial
Year, Performance Contraclins cycle. PC icores of the University for the last seven years are presented in
the below. Performance for the FY 2022/2023 will be deterrnined after evaluation by the relevant office.
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PC SCORES
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Note - the lower the score, the better the performance as shown in the scale below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND sU5TAINABILITY REPORTING

I. SUSTAINABILITY STRATECY AND PROFILE
We are alive to the positive impact that our productr have on the society. but recognize that we mu5t act ethically
in our operations. from environmental sustainability. to rupporting our staff members and the communities that we
serve. Our aim iJ to create value for our stakeholders, meet and exceed their expectations. With their interests at the
center of our priorities. our growth plans are definitely aligned to their anticipations of a flourishing future.

Our Justainability agenda focuses on meetinS operational, social. and governance expectations. without
compromising the ability to meet future needJ. We pride ourselves in doing our business responsibly. empowering
future Senerations. building business resilience and conserving the environment. The University has in place,
mechanism for adequately responding to emerginS risks that can adversely affect our business continuity. Our
sustainability strategies focut on cuttomer focus. staff welfare, operational excellence, stakeholder involvement
information security, risk management, fiscal discipline. rtaff motivation and compliance with the applicable laws.

i) Customer focus
Customer focus is one of our five core values. We recognise the siSnificance of delivering exceptional curtomer service,
bearing in mind that our business survival depends on the level of satisfaction that a customer gets after coniuming
our goods and servicel. We take great pride in treatinS all our customers with respect and dignity, regardless of their
race, colour, nationality, reliSion, or gender. For cuJtomers with physical challenges, we have designed our facilities
to offer neceJsary JUpPort, enabling them to move around and access our ground services easily. By investing in
technology and providing employee training. we Jtrive to improve the overall customer experience in a manner that
5et us aPart from the competition. We engage with our cuJtomerJ in various ways. including providing a formal
complalnt'handlinS process and soliciting service feedback.

ii) Operationalexcellence
University of Embu is both information 5ecurity Management system (15M5) l5O 9001:2015 and Quality Management
5y(em (QM5) ISO 27QO1:2O13 certified. Adoption of both syrtems is a strategic decision that war made to improve
the overall business performance. and provide a sound basis for suitainability. During the year under review, the
Management continued conducting the University busineJJ with close adherence to the two l50 standards, policies
and procedures. Reliable systems are in place, to guarantee coniiJtent quality and adequately secure our information
aJtet. lmPlementation of the quality management system. ensured that the University provided Jervices that meet its
Jtakeholder expectationJ within the applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.

A Surveillance QMs audit that was conducted by the Kenya bureau of standards in March, 2022 revealed that on
overall, the University has adequately implemented her Quality Management System (QM5) and that there is
evidence of effectiveness and continual improvement. The auditors further noted that System is able to meet the
statutory, regulatory and contractual commitmentJ. ln addition to the Jurveillance audit, the Univerrity successfully
conducted the 5th internal audit during the year, coverinS both the l5O 9001:2015 (ISMS) and l5O 27001:2013 (QMS)
standardr. The audit conclusion was that the University's management ryrtem is effective in attaining the specified
obiectiveJ. This shows our determination in pursuit of excellence. To improve on efficiency and effectiveness in
service delivery, the Univer5ity has further automated its operationr by implementing an ERP syrtem covering all
operations of the University.

The University recoSnizes information security a5 a key requirement for its business iurvival. lnformation that is
generated internally and/or acquired through interactions with stakeholders is handled with care, and appropriately
safeguarded. We have Sreatly Ieveraged on our ICT infrastructure for enhanced information security. The University
has several rites for information storage. for business continuity.

iii) Risk management
For long term tustainability, University of Embu embedded risk management in her Jystems and proceiser, so that
her risk response mechanism can remain relevant and €ffective. During the year under review, risk asresrment was
carried out, where all potential risks were assessed. and neceJrary mitigation mearurei in5tituted. The risk
management framework in place has enabled us to anticipate and minimize likelihood of occurrence of riskr. lt helpt
ut in addresiing suJtainability challenges and in making informed decisions even under conditions of uncertainty.

iv) Fiscal dircipline
UniverJity of Embu prepares and implementJ her budgets in accordance to the guidelines issued by the National
Treasury. TiSht budSetary controls are in place, to ensure availability of funds, before making any financial
commitment. A5 a practice, Univeriity of Embu allocatei resourcer strictly to proiects that are technically and
financially feasible. This ensuret that selected projects have the capacity to generate sufficient revenuer to cover the
relevant costJ.
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v) Staff training and motivation
We recognize our employees at the mort valuable resource. Our survival greatly relies on the Jervicer they render.
They have continued to demonstrate culture of innovation, ethic5. and integrity which has created a unique value
for our customers and stakeholders Thus. we are commit to progresJively invest sufficiently in the staff traininS and
welfare. in a bid to enhancinB their morale.

vi) Compliance with the appllcable laws and regulations
The Council i5 at the forefront in inculcating the culture of good corporate Sovernance. lt ensures that corporate
Sovernance guidelines and best practicer are followed in the delivery of the Univerrity mandate. in addition to
enrurinS that University's affairs are conducted in compliance with the applicable Lawr of the Republic of Kenya.

vii) Stakeholder relations
Our success as a Univerrity iJ to a very great extent attributed to the support that we receive from our rtakeholderr.
The University enSager with her stakeholders and on need basis. as a way of enhancing our relationr. and maintaininS
a favourable operatinE environment.

2. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
Univerrity of Embu is a key champion of environmental conrervation through planting of trees, environmental
clean upr and in consistently promotinS sustainable environmental practicer to combat Slobal warming and other
potential climate change impactr. UUe adopted strategiei to minimise paper usage by adoptinS lechnology in some
of our activities such as. internal communications, tendering and revenue manatement. By saving on paper. less

trees are cut and lesi industrial waste is generated during paper manufacturinB.

We are committed to Jupporting environmental conservation efforts as a sure way of improving the quality of life
for the current as well as future tenerations. The Univerrity har continued making deliberate efforts towardt enturinS
that itJ operations are carried out ln an environmentally sustainable manner. For example. the University obtains
relevant approvalJ from the National Environment ManaSement Authority, before commencement of any new
capital project. Whenever a proiect i5 to be implemented at the Univeriity. we ensure that necestary mitigations
against environmental degradation are instituted. This involves taking actions to protect our wateri and wet lands.
control soil erosion. and maintain the natural beauty of the environment. with particular empharis on preserving its
capability to support life. The following are some of environmental JUrtainability initiativeJ that were undertaken
during the year under review:

i) ln partnership with Embu County Covernment. conducted a clean-up exercire of Embu town. on 8'r'October.
2022.

ii) During the World Wetlands Day that was celebrated on 2"d February, 2023. the University in partnerJhip
with the County 6overnment of Embu. Minirtry of Water. Sanitation and Natural Resources. and other
stakeholders embarked on a restoration journey of the deterioratinS Catituri 5pring which serves as a source of
water to the residents of Embu. The theme for the year 2023 was. Revive and reslore degraded wetlands. Over
600 indigenous and exotic trees were planted.

iii) On 6'h May. 2023. the University community planted over 2500 indigenous and fruit trees in support of the
National Tree Growing Reitoration Campaign.

iv) On 2li May, 2023 the University joined handr with the Young Farmers of Kenya (Embu Branch). which serves

under the auspices of the Agricultural Society of Kenya. in a tree-planting exercire at 5t. Bhakita Siakago Cirls
High School in Mbeere Constituency. Over 15.0O0 tree seedlinSs (indigenous. exotic and fruit-treeJ) were
planted.

v) On 5th June, 2023. the University participated in a tree-plantinS exercise at Moi High School. Mbiruri where
over 1000 indigenous and exotic treer were planted. Later in the day. the Univerrity participated in a clean-up
exercise of Runyenjes Town, and conducted a 5en5itisation to residentr at Runyenies Stadium on proPer Plaitic
use and dirposal.
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Photo taken durint the clean-up exercise of Embu town clean-up exercite on 8th October. 2022.

Warte Manatement
University of Embu recogniseJ the importance of effective waJte management to enhance corporate image and reduce
negative imPact, on the environment, We maintain a clean environment, and exercise care in the management of
waJtes, to avoid exPoiins communitiei to health risks. Waste management is one of the moJt daunting challenges
facing many nations. Every household, business and organization generatei warteJ, and how that warte ir managed
is critical. At a Practice, the University manages her warte in an environmentally conscious way. We actively
encouraSe our staff and students to manage rerourcei and waste efficiently, through internal campaigns around
recycling and energy saving initiatives.
The UniverJity collaborates with the County Covernment of Embu and other specialized entitieJ in waste
management to ensure high levels of compliance with the recommended waste management practices. The following
mechanisms are in place. for management of wartes:

a) Setting litter bins in strategic locationJ acrojJ the University for collecting wastes.
b) Partnering with the County Government of Embu in the management of infectious wartes.
c) Recycling materials that can be reused.
d) Contracted waste collectors for professional management and disposal.
e) Wasteincinerations.

3. EMPLOYEE WELFARE

i) Medical care
The Univerrity values its employees' health and wellness of mind and body for optimum performance. We believe
that Prevention iJ better than cure. A healthy workforce is key to high productivity. The University has a robust in-
house staff medical cover for all employees. covering the principal member, spouse and their children. On regular
basis, free and voluntary staff wellness clinics are held, where Jtaff undergo medical examinations to identify health
problems, and ensure early remedial actions are taken, to prevent health deterioration.

ii) Recruitment
Cuided by the human resource policies and procedures, the University hires competent naff to fill vacant positions.
The recruitment Procest JtriveJ to reach and attract as many applicantJ as possible. This is an effort to enJure
compliance with the l/3 rule on gender and ethnicity.

iii) Capacity building
During the year under review, we carried out professional and leadership development training of staff designed to
enable employees to reJPond to the changing busineis environment, enhance their productivity and improve their
services to customerJ. The University has a Training Committee, which prepares the annual Training Work plan, on
which all trainingi are based. Through the performance managemenl process. staff training neeJs/skills gaps are
identified and relevant training offered. This has enabled our staff to continuourly rharpen their siills and
competencies. to enable them effectively deliver services. ln addition to the structured training, the university also
invested in employees' professional development by paying for their iubscription to variouJ professional bodies and
continuous professional development.
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iv) Employee retention
The university has necessary human resource policies to help in ensuring that human resource matlers are handled in
a consistent and equitable manner. The Univeriity has a Scheme of Service that provides clear paths for growth and
career advancement through promotion. Further. the University has put in place promotion criteria that guides the
promotion procers. Reward and 5anctions Framework is in place. where members of staff are rewarded and
tanctioned accordingly, after the annual performance apprairal process. The University ir committed to enJurinS a

lafe. healthy and conducive work environment for staff. lntereJts for staff with special needs are well taken care of.
Towardr this end. the University has a developed Occupational Safety and Health policy that i5 aligned to
Occupational safety and Health Act.2007. These policieJ are reviewed re8ularly to reflect change5 in the law.
relevant reSulations and UniverJity policies and procedures.

4. MARKET PLACE PRACTICES
University of Embu viewl competition poritively. as a force that driver her innovation to enhance quality of service
given to itt customers. Competition in the hiSher education has recently become increasingly fierce, mainly because

of the increase in the number of universities and other institutionJ of higher learning. At the rame time the limited
number of KCSE graduates attaining the University entry Srade has also contributed to the intenrity of competition
in the rector. The University being a provider of education advertiser its academic schools and proSrammes
responsibly. in a bid to attract new rtudents. with a greater focur on the lelf-sponsored category. The University
engages in ethical marketing activitie5. and evaluater itr decisions from both the burinesJ. as well as moral perspe(tiveJ.
This ensures fairner5 and re5pect to competitors.

Responsible Supply Chain and Supplier Relations

All procurement at the University are carried out in accordance with the relevant Iaws and regulation5. The University
encourages fair competition through open advertisement of tenders. and transparently invitinS and processing of
quotationr. Further. to ensure tranJparency in the procurements procers. all tenders are opened in the preJence of
bidders. Evaluation of all tenders ir done obiectively by strictly adhering to the evaluation criteria outlined in the bid
documenti. All awarded contractr are placed on the University website for information to the ttakeholdert. The
UniverJity adheres to all provisionr in its contract. and where amendments are necessary, the supplier is engaged for
mutual agreement. To ensure that the University getJ value for money. all goods delivered and workl done are

normally in5pected to ensure adherence to the user rpecificationi. All Suppliers and contractors are paid within 30
days after the acceptance of goods/works. The University has tiSht budSetary controls to eniure availability of funds.

before making any financial commitment. This has helped the University to operate without pending billt.

Product 5tewardship

University of Embu guarantees the quality of the products and services rhe offers. Our cuttomert are normally given

nece5rary 5upport to enabl€ them make well-informed decisions about choices. Our quality rystemJ are €ffective and

reliable. The University abides to all the applicable legal and regulatory requirements relatinS to quality. Further,

adequate feedback mechanisms are in place to enable the cuJtomers report any non-conforming products.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL REsPON5IBILITY / COMMUNI]Y ENCACEMENTS

University of Embu is comn-litted to good corporate governancc. and understand5 her roles wilh regard to nraking a

poJitive contribution in the wider community. We have in place well-conceived corporate social reipon5ibility
activitici. in a bid to promotinS social and economic statLrs of thc less fortunate in the 5ociety. The University believes
in making a difference in her surroundings. and will continue implementing a corporate social investment proSramme.
with a view to empowerinS communitier to improve their livinS standards. Besides delivering on our core mandate,
UniverJity of Embu has inteSrated corporate social responsibility initiativer into her business. Our Corporate Social
Responsibility activitie5 are geared towards poverty eradication. climate change mitigation, community health and
provision of education. We believe that the 5ucce55 the University has realized over time. is attributed to our
consistent culture of caring for the less fortunate. putting customer first. providing quality goods and services,
conservinS the environment. and foltering good relations with our 5takeholders. including the community in which
we operate. The University remaint committed as a responsible corporate citizen in prioritizinS mitiSation measures

on the impact of her activities on the environment. communities. employees and stakeholders.

The following are some of the activitie5 undertaken during the year under review. in the fulfilment of our corporate
social responsibility objectives:

a) On lSth March, 2023. the University staff and rtudentr visited the A.C.K 5t. Magdalene Special School for the
Deaf and presented gifti in kind to them.

b) Conducted a free road safety Training at Lions Primary School on Tuesday 7",March. 2023.
c) Held a free Legal Aid Clinic dubbed "Bottom-up Justice" for Mungania Tea Farmers on Thurrday 2"d February,

2023. to sensitized the farmers on the iJsues of inheritance. will, shares tranrmiiJion. and land disputes among
other area5.

d) Donated fluoreJcent tubet. mattreJses, food supplies and arsorted consumer product5 to variour institutions in
Embu County, on Tuesday, 19tt' )uly 2022. The items were provided by the University in addition to generous
donations by members of the UniverJity community. The in(itutions that benefited include 5t. Angela Embu
Children's Home, ACK 5t. Monica School for the Physically Challenged, Jomo Kenyatta Children's Home and 5t.
Stephen Children's Home.

e) Participated in the ACK Diocese of Embu Education 5unday. held at A.C.K. King David Boys Hi6h School,
Kamama on 5unday 4"' June. 2023. The University donated trophies for the Best Secondary School and the Best
Primary 5chool.

f) Qn 26rh )anuary.2023 held a farmers traininS workihop, focusing on hydroponic tomato production. The
training war on tomato production and peit control.

g) ln partnership with the Affordable. Surtainable FarminS Networks (AsFAN), the University trained ASFAN Board
members on production of herbs and extraction of essential oils. The training was conducted on l6'h and l7rh,
February. 2023 at the University.

h) Hosted many schools on different dates. both primary and secondary, for educational and career advirory.

A phot taken during a virit to a children'r home
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REPORT OF THE COUNCIL MEMBERS
University of Embu Council submits its report together with the financial Jtatements for the period
ended 3O,h )une,2023 which show the state of affairs of the Univerrity.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the University of Embu is to generate. advance and disseminate
knowledge through training, research and innovation and offer extension services to communities
within Embu County, other parts of Kenya. and across the world.

RESULTS

The results of the University of Embu for the period ended 30th )une,2023 are ret out on pages

36 to 74

UNIVERSITY OF EMBU COUNCIL MEMBERS

The members of the Council who served during the year are shown on pages 9 to ll

AUDITORS

The Auditor Ceneral is responsible for the rtatutory audit of the University, in accordance with
the Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Public Audit Act, 2015.

By Order of the University of Embu Council

+
Prof. Daniel Mugendi Njiru (Ph.D)
SECRETARY, UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Date: 25th October, 2023
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STATEMENT OF COUNCIL MEMBERS' RE5PONSIBILITI ES

Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 47 of the Universities Act No. 42,
of 2012' require the University of Embu Council to prepare financial Jtatements in respect of Univer5ity
of Embu, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University at the end of the
financial year and the operating results of the University for that yearlperiod. The University Council
is also required to ensure that the University keeps proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy the financial position of the University. The Council is also responsible for
safeguarding the asiets of the University.

The University Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Univerrity,, financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University for and as at the end
ofthe financial year ended on 3o'h June, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate
financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the
reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial poiition of the University: (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining
internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and
ensuring that they are free from material misJtatements, whether due to error or fraud: (iv)
safeguarding the asseti of the University; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies:
and (vi) making accounting eitimateJ that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The council accePt, retPonsibility for the university's financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and ertimatej,
in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (lpsAs), and in the manner required
by the PFM Ac.,2ol2 and the Universities Act No. 42, of 2012.The council is of the opinion that the
University's financial JtatementJ give a true and fair view of the state of University's transactions during
the financial year ended 30'h June' 2022, and of the university's flnancial porition ar at that date. Thecouncil further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the University,
which have been relied upon in the preparation of the University's financial statements, as well as the
addquacy of the systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the council to indicate that the university will not remain a going
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial rtatements
The University's financial statements were approved on l5'h Septemb er.2023,and signed on behalf ofthe Council by:

I

,:.

' ,'.1

Dr. Kennedy Okong'o
COUNCILCHAIRMAN

Prof. Daniel Mugendi Njiru
ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Page 34 of8l



Telephone: +254-(2o) 32t40oo
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GEI{ERAL

E n ha nc i n I A cc ou n lobi I i ty

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box loo84-oo1oo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON UNIVERSITY OF EMBU FOR THE YEAR
30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Repoft on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governanc€ systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ot lhe Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts
of the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of University of Embu for the year
ended 30 June, 2023 set out on pages 36 to 75, which comprise the statement offinancial

Report o/the Auditor-General on University o/ Enbulor the year ended 30 June, 2023



position as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of financial performance, statement of
changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of University of Embu as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Universities (Amendment) Act,
2016 and the Public Finance Management Act,2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the University of Embu Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

l. CBA Refund

As previously reported, the statement of financial position reflects CBA Refund amounting
to Kshs.81,560,000 as further disclosed in Note 39 to the financial statements. Review of
records revealed that the University received Kshs.106 million in the financial year
201212013 and 201312014 from the National Treasury for CBA implementation. This
amount was reallocated to other vote heads and spent by the University. Later, the
University, under the direction of the Ministry of Education refunded Kshs.24,440,000
resulting to an outstanding balance of Kshs.81,560,000 which had not been refunded as
at the time of audit.

The University has not shown how it planned to clear the outstanding debt

2. Unsettled Liabilities

The statement of financial position reflects current liabilities and non-current liabilities
amounting to Kshs.278,000,291 and Kshs.1,507,563,391 respectively all totaling
Kshs.1,785,563,682. This is an increase of Kshs.70,862,186 from the previous year
amount of Kshs.1,714,701 ,496. However, Management has not provided any explanation
for the delays in settling the liabilities while the University is exposed to litigations and the
risk of incurring penalties and interest for late payments.

Report of the Auditor-General on University of Embu lor the yeor ended 30 June, 202 3
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ln the circumstances, University may not receive prompt supply of goods and services
due to delay in settling of debts.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me belief that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Un-approved Expenditure on Foodstuff and Kitchen Supplies

The statement of financial performance reflects general expenses amounting to
Kshs.218,501 ,453. The amount includes food stuffs and kitchen supplies expenditure
totalling to Kshs.33,330,171 as reflected in Note 21 of the financial statements. Review
records revealed that the budget allocation for foodstuffs and kitchen supplies was
amounting to Kshs.29,863,083 which was revised upwards by Kshs.3,844,917 or 13o/o ot
the original budget. However, the revised budget was not approved by the Ministry of
Education and the National Treasury.This is contrary to National Treasury Circular No.
1512021 guidelines for the preparation of the Annual Budget for State Corporations for
the financial year 202212023 which requires revision of budget exceeding 10% to be
reviewed and approved by the line Ministry and the National Treasury.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Delayed Construction of Tuition Complex

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment totalling to
Kshs.3,758,874 ,122. The amount includes additions to capital work in progress totalling
to Kshs.99,643,880 as reflected in Note 27 to the financial statements in respects of the
construction of the Tuition Complex. As reported in the previous year, the tender for the
construction of the proposed tuition block was awarded to a local Contractor at a contract
price of Kshs.651,192,721 lot a contract period of 184 weeks commencing 23May,2018
Report ofthe Auditor-Generql on University of Enbu for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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and completion date of 1 December, 2021. The contractor requested for an extension of
42 weeks for the works to be completed on 21 September, 2022, and thereafter, an
add itional 54 weeks extension from 1 3 December, 2022 to 28 Septemb er, 2023. However,
physical verification conducted in September, 2023 revealed that project was 85%
complete.

ln the circumstances, the completion of the project has negatively affected the public and
value for money for the expenditure amount of Kshs.1 1 9,21 9,1 83 paid so far could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 231 5 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
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related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the University or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
201 5. ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation
to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7('t )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
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reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

Repo ofthe Auditor-Generql on University of Embufor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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I

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FC u, CBS
AUDITOR€ENERAL

Nalrobi

l6 February,202t1

T\.!r

Report ofthe Auditor-Oeneral on University of Embufor the year ended 30 June, 21023
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UNIVER5ITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE, 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

The notes set out on pageJ 43 to 74 form an intesral part of these Financial Statementi. The Financial Statements set

ger 36 to 42 were signed on behal of the Council by
\

.,..........artL!--ri.......

Prof. Daniel Mugendi Njiru
SECRETARY

-' tl,(,
'.\:

Mr. Lawrence Kamonjo

HEAD OF FINANCE
ICPAK NUMBER: 7080
Date: 25th October, 2023

Page 36 ofSl

Dr. Kennedy Okong'o
COUNCIL CHAIRMAN

2021/2022Note 2022/2023

(KEs)(KEs)

Revenue from non-exchange trantactions
628.865.3336 628.750.182Transfer from other Covernment entitieJ

27.698.87645 26.550.910Amortization of grants

655,301,O92 656,564,209

Revenue from exchange trantact ionJ

345.312,9207 372.502.O44Rendering of services

I 6.876.766 6.947.118Rental revenue

14.685.8459 16,405.010Farm income

lo 4.444.818 4.458.875Finance lncome

15,103.563ll 3 3, t85,8r 3Research income

980,78712 1.470,429Hire of Facilities
5.4r0.000 5,937,150Craduation fee 13

766.67214 872.614Library services

3.945.261l5 2.O14.063lncome 6enerating
t6 2.358,606 1.825.335Other income

399,963,s26M5,540,163
1,O56,527,7351,100,841.2s5Total revenue

Expenses

t7 7sl.383.479 744,O74,615Employee coits

11.9il,213Remuneration of University Council l8 11.o74.41O

66.395.21O 66.509.11927Depreciation and amortization expenJe

19 14.476,543 13,534,696Repairs and maintenance

20 30.957.543 47,654,994Research expenses
218,501,453 218,068,505Ceneral expenses 21

1.O92.789,638 1,101,753,142Total expenses
I,O51,617 u5,22s,406)5urplus/(Defl cit) from operations

22 (201,780\ (1,610.230)Other gains/(losses)
7,849,837 Q6,83s,536)5u rplus/(Deficit) for the period

,l1tt

Date: 25th Oclober, 2023 Date: 25th October. 2023



UNIVERSITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTs FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE, 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A5 AT 3OTH JUNE. 2023

Note 2022/2023 2021/2022
ASSETS KES KES
Current assets
Cash and cash e u ivalents 23 144.774.399 113.528.3s6
Receivables f rom exchan e tra nsactions 24 17,204.OO2 33.490.6sO
Receivables f rom non-exchan e transactions 25 16.552.469 3.O98.223
lnventories 26 8,236.311 10.559.121
B iolo ical arset! 2A I 1.136.320 r,571.500
Total Current Assets 147 903.501 162,247,A50

Non-current assets
Pro lant and e ul entrt 27 3 .7 58 .A7 4 .122 3.701,479.315
B iolo ical alset5 2A 6,509.300 6,275.900
lnta ible Assets 29 9.143.667 r 3.715.500
Total Non - current asset, 3,774,527,OAA 3 721 470,715
Total assets 3 962,430,589 3 565883 7ta

LIAB ILITIES
Current li abi liti es
Trade and other payables from exchange
transactions

3r
180,202.705 109.472.705

Pa ables f rom non-exchan e transactions 32 77,673,672 72,557,163
Refundable de Jits 33 984,849 937 ,614
Provision for audit fee 34 1.O44.OOO r.566.OOO
Pa ent received in advance 35 7 ,232,446 1,',l56,O55
Bursaries Fund 36 10.862.620 8,008,r63
Total current liabi lities 278,OOO,291 193 697 699

Non-current liabi liti es
Caution mon 37 24.O51.974 2t.282.OOO
Retention mone 38 32.804.O16 so.064.940.oo
CBA refund 39 8r,560.OOO 8r,560.OOO.OO
Deferred income 43 L369.'147 .401 1,368.O96.856.43
Total non-current li abilities I 507,563 391 796521 oo3
Total liabilities 6827A5 s63 1,714,701.496
Net Assets
Revaluation reserves 45 1 .866 ,688 ,262 1 .866 ,68A ,262 .OO
Revenue reserve 46 310.17A.644 302.328,807 .OO
Total Reserves 2,176 466 906 2,169,O17 ,069
Total net assets and liabilities 3 962,430.5A9 3,883,718,565
Financial statementr set out on pages 35 to 42 were signed on behalf of the Council by

Prof. Daniel Mugendi Njiru
SECRETARY

Mr. Lawrence Kamonjo
HEAD OF FINANCE
ICPAK NUMBER: 7080
Date: 25'h October, 2O23

Dr. Kennedy Okong'o
COUNCIL CHAIRMAN

Date: Date: 25tt October, 2O23
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STATEMENT OF CHANCE IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR, ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

Revaluation
re s erve

Revenue
re5 e rves

Total

(K"lh) (Ksh) (Kih)

Balance as at lst July 2O2l 1,327.024.973 349,164,444 1,676.189.417
DeficitAurplus for the period (46,835,536) (46,83s,636)
I ncrease/(Decrease) in revaluation 539.663.289 539.663,289
Balance as at 3oth )une,2022 1,866,688,262 302,328,808 2,169.O17.069

Balance as at Ist July 2022 1.866,688,262 302.328.808 2.169.O17.069

I ncrease/(Decrease) in revaluation

DeficitT5urplus for the period 7.849.837 7,849.837
Balance as at 3Oth Juae.2023 1,866,688,262 31o.178.645 2,176,866,906

UNIVERSITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE, 2023
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Other income

UNIVERsITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE, 2023

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

Cash flows from o erati activities
2022/2023 KE5 2021/2022 (KES)

Receiptt Note
Transfer from other 6overnment entities 6 628.7 50.182 628.865.333
Rendering of services 7 (i) 403.300.8r 4 355.275.647

6.952.118Rental income 8 & (ii) 6.924.O01
Farm income 9 & (iii) r6.339.040 14.695.601
Finance income
Research income

lo 4.444.818 4.458.875
1l 6( (iv) 33.531.134 30.729.994

Hire of Facilities 12 (v) 1.414.429 980.787
6raduation fee l3(vi) 5.352.574 4.400.186
Library rervices 14 472.614 766.672
lncome Cenerating l5 2.O14.063 3.945.261

l6 & (vii) 3.454.606 3.385.875
1,106,398,275 1,O54,456,349

Payment s

Employee costs l7 & (viii) 681.356.376 662.338.07 6
University Council expenses l8 11.o74.410 I I .911 .21 3

Repairs & maintenance I9 14.476.543 13.534.696
Research expenses 20 6. (ix) 28.263.527 42.413.O82
6eneral expenses 2l & (x) 219,869.730 220,894,O95
Trade creditors paid r 3.045.788 13.577.821

968,O86,374 964,568,983
Net cash flows from operating activities t 38,31I,901 89,787,366

Cash flows from invertinE activities
Property. plant. equipt and intangible asJets 27 &. (xi\ 124.565.858 137.125.925
Net cash flows used in investing activitiet 124,565,858 137,126,925

Cash flows from financing activities
6overnment development grants 44(xii) 17.500.000 75.000.000
Net carh flows from financing activities r7,500,000 75,000.000

Net increase/(decrease) in carh &, cash equivalentt 31,246,O43 27,560,441
Cash and cash equlvalents at lst July,2022 113,528,356 85,567,91s
Cash and carh equivalent aJ at 30th June,2023 144,774,399 I13,528,355
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE, 2023

CASHFLOW NOTES 2022/2023 2021/2022

Add: Fees receivable b,4

(KE5) (KE5)

(i) Rendering services 372,502,O44 345,312,920
32.059.832 32.133.706

lncreaJe in caution money 2.769,974 2,556.000
Increase/(Decrease) in student subscription (8.849) 1.390.442
Deferred fees df 7.232.446 r.r s6.055
Unclaimed fees df 3.144,497 3,030,879
lncrease in bursary fund 2.854.457 1,479.618
Endowment fund received 3.719.235 5,086,807

Less: Deferred fees b/f 0,156,055) (1,536,964\

Unclaimed fees b/f (3,030,879) (3,273,984)
Fees receivable df (r6.785,888) (32,059,832\

403.300,8r4 3s5,27s,647

(ii) Rental income 6.876.766 6,947.118
lncrease/(decrease) in rental deposit 47,235 5.000

6,924,OO1 6,952,u8

(ill) Farm lncome 15,405,0t0 14,68s,845
Add: Farm income receivable b,4 43.968 53,724
Less: Farm income receivable r/f fi09,938) (43,968)

16,339.040 14,695,601

(iv) Research income 33.r85.8r 3 15,103,553
Add: Deferred re5earch grantJ df 15,971,752 15,626,431
Less: Deferred research grants b/ 05,626,431)

33.53r.r34 30,729,994

(v) lncome on hlre of facilities 1,470,429 980,787
Less: lncome receivable (56,000)

1,414,429 980,787

(vi) Grsduatlon fee 5.410,000 5,937,150
Less: Recoveries from Fees (57,426) Q.536.964\

5,352,574 4,400,186

(vii) Other income 2,358,606 |,825,335
Add: lncrease/(decrease) alumni fund 1,096.000 1,560,540
Add: lnsurance compensation

3,454,606 3,385,875

(vlii) Employee cortt 751,383,479 744,O74,615
Add: Provision for b/f 96.426.917 27.884.982
Less: Provision for salary arrears y'f (143.096.375\ (96.426.917)

Decrease in voluntary pay cut 148.816 fl48.8r6)
statutory deductions payable c/f (13,045.788)

Part-time teaching payable (23,148.852)

Non-cash dedcutions (357.609j
681,356,376 66233A,O76
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CASHFLOW NOTES (continued)

2022/2023 KE5 2021/2022 KE5
(ix) Research expenses 30,957,543 47.654.994

Less: lm rest surrenders (2.694.O16) (5.241.912)

28,263,527 42,413,O82

(x) 6eneral expenses 218,501,453 2 t 8,058,505
Less; Provision for audit fee (s22.OOO) (522.OOO\

Provision for bursaries (2.500,000)
lm rests surrenders (260,239) (267 .508\
Bad debts written off (172.294)

Add: Decrease in inventory 2.322.810 l93.l t9
Cha n e in overdrawn bank account 5.921.979

219,869,730 220,894,O95

(xi) Property, Plant and equipment 119,2t9,183 146,O97.285
Decrease /(lncrease) in retention 17 .260.924 (8.914.358)
Recoveries 2.O43.229 (56.002\
Amount payable c,4 (13.957.478)

124,555,858 137,126,925

(xii) 6overnment Development Erants (KES) (KE5)

Development grant5 27,601,454 75.000.o00
Less: Receivable df (r0.r0r.454)

Actual received r 7.500,000 75.000.000
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UNIVER5ITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL R.EPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTI] JUNE, 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2023

2022-2023

utillrrtlon

fln6l budrct
Expl.mtlon of mal.rial
v.rl6nc.r (.bove l096)

Origlnal
budget

2022-2023 2022-2023
flnll budget
2022-2023

batit 2022-
2023

REVENUE
Vadaft. not .bove lO628.750.142 628,754.1826overnm.nl r€tu ent 8r.nt, 524.750.t42

(ro.r0r.454) (37)

Developmml budSet wat
.!duc.d by th€ 6oK frcm
KfJ 70 million io KEs

27.60t.454. Our of tl€

10.101.454 w r€.eived in

rhe month ofJulv. 2o23.

70.@o.ooo @2,394,546) 27.60t.454 17.500.@oCovehm.nl devr Srantt

2.085.8t3 7 Vad.fte not .bove lO35.300.0OO (4.200.ooo) 3 t,too.ooo 33.185.8t3

6.531.659 31.659 o Vrd.ft. rcr.bove lO4.200.@o 2.3@.OOO 6.500.000
Vadance noi above lO'%4.376.250 8.376.960 7ta oArommod.tion re 7.t7t.250 r.205.0@
V.dance iot 6bove lOo/.332-529-210 339.54r,506 7,Ot2,296 2110 528 750 22.000.460
Va axe nol atove loo/o23.300.0OO 24.583.578 1.283.578 6Cate nc 16.300.OO0 7.000.ooo
Vldlke oot above lO%15.400.000 16.405,01o 5.OtO 0r 5.000.ooo l.400,ooo
V. a.re not above lO%476.(na 5.876.000 6.A7 6,766 766 0Rental 5.000.ooo
Vadance not above loo/ol.940.ooo 4.440.000 4,444,818 4.818 02.500.000

0 Vad6n.e rlot above IOo/o470.OOO 1.470.O4O 1.470.429 429Hire of F6clllller r.000.000
5.4r0.ooo fl.ooo) (0) V.d.re mt .bove lOo/o5.OOO.OOO (589.m0) 5.4I.000

a7t 500 a7 2.614 l.I4 o V6d.n@ nor above loo/o700,000 171.500
Vrd.rc not above loo/o2.O14_OOO 2.O14.063 63 o5.OOO.OOO (2.986,0OO)

2.154.606 3.606 o Vad.rc mi above lO./.800.ooo r.555.000 2.355,000
I,O98,322.O04 427.108I,t09,250.182 (ll.255.586) I.097,994.596

lxp.nrar
a.t2a.7@l 0) V.rl..r! rtot .bove lO68t.541.682 16.902.975 69a.444-657 694.323.957

lt-075.5t5 It.o74.4lO n.t05) (0) Vrd.e mt .bove loqoRemuner.lion lo lhe Cou*rl t 3.244.000 (2.r68.485)
Vrdre mr lbove loo/ot4-478-0o0 t4.476.543 lt.457l (o)Reo;in.rd m.inl€n M. r7.roo.mo Q.622.m\
Vad.re Dr .boee too/o31.500_@o 30.957.543 /542.457) QI2 5.mO.000 6,500.om
V.d.re El lbove too,613.a84.@O 13.473.707 0o.293) (o)r4.ooo,ooo 0r6,ooo)
V.d!re mt above 1096215-451.785 204.627.746 no.824.O39) (s)240.625.500 (25 ,t7 3.715)
V.dare lbt above 10964.200.o@ 2.3@.OOO 6.500.000 6.53r.659 3r.559 o

t9-575.303 1.747.293 IO

V.d!fte rct.bove lO -

TtE owr-ulilizalion in lhe
vot€ o(irrioned by increaret

ln lh€ mark€t pdce, oi
Property, Plant & Equipment 35.539.O@ 08.7ro.990) 17.828.OrO

15.942.724 1657-276) (3) V6d.nc. rct .bov€ lOolo7.O@.OOO lo.500.ooo r 7.500.000
6A-743 -57A 12.588.951) @) Vadan e not above lOYoDeveloomert Dloied, 70.000,ooo 1,332.629 71.332.629

n6,46?,326r,r09.250.r02 (11,255,586) 1.o97.991.596 1.o8r.t27.270
17,191.7a4 17.194.r11surplur lo. ah. D.rlod

Note
The totaladjurtment ofthe budget ,.om KES 1.109.25O,182 to KES 1.097,994.596 rrar malnly caured by a cut in the development budtet by the

GoK. Conrequently. aurterlty mearuret were inrtituted in a bid to abtorbinS the reduction. hence lhe adju,tment
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'TATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE. 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. CENERAL INFORMATION
University of Embu was established by and derives its authority and accountability from the Embu
Universrty College Legal Order of 17'h June. 2011. under the University of Nairobi Act (Cap 21O).
legal notice No. 65 of l71t'June 2011. The University is wholly owned by the covernment of
l(enya. and is domiciled in Kenya. The University's principal activity is to generate, advance and
disseminate knowledge through training, research. and innovation for the development of
humanity.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical coit basis except for the mearurement
at re-valued amountJ of certain items of property, plant and equipment. marketable securities and
financial instrument5 at fair value. impaired aisets at their estimated recoverable amounts and
actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.

The preparation of financial statementt in conformity with lnternational Public Sector Accounting
Standards (lP5A5) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. lt also requires management to
exercise judgement in the process of applying the University's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity. or where a5sumptionr and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5 of these financial jtatements.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings. which is the
functional and reporting currency of the University.

The financial statementJ have been prepared in accordance with the Public Finance Management
Acl. 2012 and Universities Act No. 42. of 2012. and International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (lPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

3. ADOPTION OF NE\vAND REVISED STANDARDS

i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30 )une 2023.

tP5A5 4l:
F ina ncia I

lnst ru ment s

Applicable: l,' January 2023:
The objective of IP5AS 41 is to establish principles for the financial reporting of financial assets and
liabilitiet that will present relevant and useful information to uier of financial statements for their
arJe$ment of the amounts. timing and uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.
lP5A5 41 provider users of financial statements with more useful information than IP5A5 29. by:
'Applying a sinSle classification and measurement model for financial assetl that considers the

characteriiti(s of the as5et'5 cash flows and the objective for which the a5ret i5 heldi

' Applying a single forward-lookinS expected credit loss model thal is applicable to all financial
in5trumentr JUbject to impairment testing: and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging arrangements in
rcope of the guidance. The model develops a 5trong link between an Entity 5 risk management
rtrateSies and the accounting treatment for inrtruments held as part of the risk management
Jtrategy.

Standard Effectlve date and lmpBct:
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Standatd Effective date and lmpact:

lmpact of the standard
The standard will not have any impact on the University since it hal never issued or

uired a financial instrumenta

tPsAS 42

social Benefits

Applicable; l" January 2O23

The ob.jcctive of this 5tandard is to improve the relevance. faithful reprerentativeness and
comparability of the information that a reportin8 Entity provides in its financial statementr about
social benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial rtatement5 and
general-pu rpose financial reports a9ser9:
(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.
(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes: and
(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity'r financial performance, financial

po5ition and cash flows.

lmpact of the standard
The standard does not have an tm ct 5ince the Universi does not deal with social benefits-
Applicable: 'lst January 2O23:

a) Amendments to lP5A5 5, to update the guidance related to the componentr of borrowing
costs which were inadvertently omitted when lP5A5 4l was iiiued.

b) Amendments to IPSAs 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging and credit risk which
were inadvertently omilted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

c) Amendments to IPsAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for financial guaranteed
contractJ which were inadvertently omitted when lP5A5 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33. to update the guidance on classifying financial initrumentl on
initial adoption of accrual basis lP5A5 which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was
issued.

lmpact of the standard
The standard will chan e the wa we account for financial in5trument5
Applicable ln January 2023
. IPSAf 22 Disclosure of Financial lnformation about the Aeneral 5overnment tector.

Amendmentr to refer to the latert Syttem of National Accounts 6NA 2008).
t IPSA' 39: Employee Benefitt. Now deleteJ the term comporite social security benefits as it is

no longer defined in lP5A5.
. lP5A5 29: Financial instrumentJ: Recognition and Measurement. Standard no longer included

in the 2023 lP5A5 handbook ar it is now superseded by IP5A5 4l which ir applicable from l',
)anuary 2023.

Impact of the standard
The im rovementi have enhanced disclosures in our financial statementt

ii. New and amended Jtandards and inte retationJ in iJsue but not effective in the r ended 30 June 2023.

rP5A5 43 Applicable F January 2O25
The standard sets out the principler for the recognition. measurement, presentation, and
disclosure of leases. The obiective i5 to ensure that le5ree5 and lessors provide relevant
information in a manner that faithfully representr those transactionJ. This information gives a

basis for users of financial statementr to as5ess the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.
The new standard requires entitier to recognise, measure and present information on right of uie
aJlets and lease lia bilitier.

lmpact of the standard
The standard will not have any impacf on the University iince the University does not have any
existing lease contract. However, 5hould the University enter into a lease agreement later, the

act of the Standard shall be determined and applied appropriatelv

Amendments
to Other
lP5A5 resu lting
from lP5A5 41.
F ina ncial
lnstruments

Other
improvementj
to lP5A5
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Applicable P )anuary 2025
The Standard requires. A55etr that meet the criteria to be classified as held for rale to be measured
at the lower of carryinS amount and fair value less coJtr to sell and the depreciation of such arsets
to ceaJe and:
Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for iale to be prerented reparately in the
statement of financial position and the reJUlts of discontinued operations to be prerented
separately in the statement of financial performance.

lmpact of the standard
The Standard will be relevant since due to changing technology and business dynamics. University
may from tlme to time have ariets earmarked for sale. The standard will be used in measuring
the carryinS amount. Further. ihould the Univerrity discontinue any of its operations, the
Standard will be re uired in tvt the necesrar disclosure.

2) Early adoption of standards
University of Embu did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the year 2022/2023.

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

i) Rwenue from non-exchange tranractions

Transfers from other government entities

Recurrent grants
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (carh, goods, services and property) if the
transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or rervice potential
related to the asset will flow to the University and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are
recognized in the statement of Financial Performance.

Development grants

Development/capital grants are recognized in the Statement of Financial Position and realired in
the Statement of Financial Performance over the uJeful life of the assets that has been acquired
using such funds.

University of Embu recoSnizes development granti received as a deferred income statement of
financial position. Upon completion and commissioning of the project funded through the grants,

the grants relating to the project are amortized using the applicable depreciation rate, by reducing

the carrying amount of the liability and recognizing an equal amount as an income. in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

ii) Revenue from exchange tranractions

Rendering of servicej
The University of Embu recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the ttaSe
of completion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. Where the contract
outcome cannot be measured reliably. revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are recoverable.
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Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential
associated with the traniaction will flow to the University.

lnterest income
lnterett income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asJet's net carrying
amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income
each period.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on rental property is recognized on occupancy of
the property and included in revenue.

b) Budget information
The original budget for FY 2022/2023 was approved by the National Assembly on 7,h April,2022
Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional
appropriations are added to the original budget by the University, upon receiving the respective
approvals in order to conclude the final budget. However, appropriation of the University was
reduced by the 6oK by KES 42.398.546, during the year under review.

The University's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statementJ are prepared on accrual basis using
a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas
the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amountJ in the financial statements were recast from
the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the
approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis
to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts.

ln addition to the Basis difference, adiustmentJ to amounts in the financial itatements are also
made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the prerentation of the
financial ttatements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the Statement Of
Comparison Of Budget And Actual Amounts and the actuals as per the Statement of Financial
Performance (SoFP) has been done as follows.
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Statement of
Financial Jtatement of

bu Difference Reconciliation
Tolal revenue ar per the toFP
Le$: Amortizalion ol capital Branlt

I.t00.841.255 L098.322.O04 2 519 251 Total in the Statem€nt of BudSet

KEs r,r00,84r.25s
(KEs 26.550.9r0)

KES 6.531.659
KES r7.500.000
KE 1.098.322.004

Add itemr in the ,tatement of budtet not in the SoFP
Conlribution, lo lhe Endowment Fund
Development grantr

Total

Tolalexpendiiurc ar per the 5oFP
terr: D€pre(ialion which is not in the bLrdSet
Lelr: Provirion for !alary arrear

KES t.O92.789.638
KEs (66.396.2r0)
KES (57 .Os9.s22)

KEs 6.53r.659
KEt r9.575.303
KE5 85.686.402
KES 1 .081 .t27 .270

Add itemt in the natement of budSet not in the soFP
Tranrfer to Endowmenl Fund
Expenditllre on Property. Plant & Equipment
Expenditure on capital projectj

I.092.789.638 1.o81.127 .270 (r.662.368) Total aI the Statement of Bu

c) lnvestment property
lnvestment properties are measured initially at cost. including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the replacement cott of componentJ of an existing investment property at the
time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the corts of day-to-day
maintenance of an investment property.

lnvestment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at
the date of acquisition. 5ubsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
using the cost model and are depreciated over a 3O-year period.

lnvestment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or
service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-
recognition. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in
use.

d) Property, plant and equipment
All property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the University recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Likewise. when a major inspection is performed, itJ coJt is

recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as

incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal
conJideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value. The depreciation is calculated on the
reducing balance to write down the cost of each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful
life using the following rates:

Land 0%
Euildings 2.5o/o
Motor Vehiclet 25o/o
Furnilure & Fittingt 12.5o/o

Computer &. Printert 30o/o
Plant & Equipment 12.5o/o

Library books 2oo/o
Bearer plants l0o/o
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e) Intangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following
initial recognition, intangible assetJ are carried at cost leiJ any accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment Iosses. lnternally generated intangible assets. excluding capitalized
development corts, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as

either finite.

f) Research and development costt
University of Embu expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual
project are recognized as intangible assets when the University can demonstrate:

i. The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use

or 5ale
ii. lts intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset
iii. How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential
iv. The availability of resources to complete the asset

v. The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of an asset, it is carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is

complete and the atset is available for use. lt is amortized over the period of expected future
benefit. During the period of development, the asset ir terted for impairment annually with any
impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

g) Financial inttruments
lnitial recognition and measurement

Financial asrets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial lnstruments: are clasrified as financial assets

at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables. held-to-maturity investments or
available-for-sa le financial assets, as appropriate. The University determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable paymentJ that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement. such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, lesl impairment.
Amortized cost i5 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an lntegral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment
are recoSnized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-to-maturity
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as held to maturity when the University has the positive intention and ability to hold it
to maturity. After initial measurement. held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized
cott u5in8 the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
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into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit.

lmpairment of financial assets

University of Embu assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a

financial asset or an entity of financial assets i5 impaired. A financial asset or an entity of financial
assets i5 deemed to be impaired if, and only if. there is objective evidence of impairment as a

result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
atset or the entity of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include the following indicators:

a) The debtors or entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty
b) Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
c) The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
d) Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g.

changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial liabilities
lnitial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The University determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the caie of loanJ and borrowings,
plus directly attributable transaction costs.

h) lnventories
lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory
is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present

location and conditions are accounted for. as follows:

i. Raw materials; purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

ii. Finished goods and work in progreis: cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing
co5ts

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
However. to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement

cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. exchange, or
distribution.
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lnventories are recognized as an expenre when deployed for utilizatlon or consumption in the

ordinary course of operations of the University.

i) Biological assets

The University has various biological aJsets including cows, goats, pigs, bearer plants and
horticu ltura I plants.

. Measurement of biological assets

The assets are measured on initial recognition, and at each reporting date, at their fair value i.e.

the price that would be earned if the aJsetJ were sold. The assets are valued by professionalvaluers
at the end of each reporting period, using fair value method, which reflects economic and financial
reality and therefore increases the value relevance of the accounting information.

The main assumption in the measurement of biological assets is that fair value can be reliably
measured.

. Restrictions on biological assets

None of biological assets had any restriction during the year under review.

. Financial risk on biological assets

Biological assets are affected by the following risks:
a) Adverse changes in prices of products
b) Adverse changes in prices of inputs
c) Disease infections
d) Hash weather conditions

. Management ttrategies on agricultural activities
The University uses the following strategies to decrease cost and increase yields:

a) C limate-resilient farming
b) Buying inputs in large volumes to fetch fair prices.
c) Crop rotation

j) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the University of Embu has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service potential will be required to rettle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the University expects some or all
of a provision to be reimbursed. for example. under an insurance contract. the reimbursement is

recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision i5 presented in the ttatement of financial performance net of any
reimbursement.

k) Contingent liabilities
University of Embu does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any
contingenciet in the notes to the financial statementJ, unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.
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l) Contingent assets

The University doei not recoSnize a contingent aiset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the University in the notei to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected

in the financial statements. lf it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits

or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably. the arset and the
related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change

occurJ.

m) Nature and purpose of reierves
University of Embu maintains the following the following reJerves in terms of specific

requirements.

(i) Revenue reserve,

The revenue reserve is created out of the surpluses generated by the University from its operating
activities, and retained for the purpose of expanding business or to meet contingencies in the
futu re.

(ii) Revaluation rerervet
The revaluation reserve arose from revaluation of property plant, and equipment. When revalued
property and equipment are Jold, the portion of the revaluation rererve that relates to that asset.

and is effectively realized, is transferred directly to the Accumulated Surplui.

n) Changes in accountinS policies and estimates

University of Embu recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retros pectively. The

effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retro5pective application is

impractical.

o) Employee retirement benefits

The University of Embu provides retirement benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plans

are post-employment benefit plans under which University pays fixed contributions into a

separate Pension Scheme Fund and will have no legal or conJtructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient asseti to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the
payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become

payable.

p) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the

date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported

at the Statement of Financial Position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors

at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are

recognized as income or expenseJ in the period in which they arise.
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q) Borrowing costs

University of Embu has never taken any loan from a financial institution.

r) Related parties

University of Embu regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly. or to exercise significant influence over the University, or vice versa.

Members of key management are regarded as related parties, and comprise of the Chancellor,

Council members, the Vice-Chancellor and senior managers.

s) Service concession arrangements

Universlty of Embu didn't have any concession arrangements with another entity or individual.

t) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly Iiquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amountt of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various

commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial statementt,

cash and cash equivalents also include Jhort term cash petty cash floats given to authorized public

officers/offices which had not been surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

u) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

5. SI6NIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF E'TIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of the University's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues. expenies, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of continSent liabilities. at the end of
the reporting period. However. uncertainty about these aisumptions and estimates could result

in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability
affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Univerity based

its assumptions and eJtimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. However, exiiting circumttances and assumptions about future developmentJ may

change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of University of Embu.

Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 'i.140

(i) Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:

i. The condition of the asset based on the asseisment of experts employed by the University.
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ii. The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes.

iii. The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.
iv. Availability of funding to replace the asset.

v. Changes in the market in relation to the asret.

(ii) Provisions

Provisions were raised and the Management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Notes 27 and 32

Provisions are measured at the management's best ertimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is

material. University of Embu made the following three provisions, which have been include in
the financial statements for the year:

a) Provision for depreciation
This caters for reduction in the value of an asset with the parsage of time. due to wear and tear.
University of Embu uses reducing balance method to depreciate its arsets. The applicable rates of
depreciation are given in note 4(c) of this financial statements.

b) Provision for audit fee
Provision for audit fee is based on the invoice for the last financial year. The actual charge for
audit services will be determined after the actual audit by the Auditor Ceneral.

c) Provision for bursaries.

This is a transfer to the bursaries kitty bared on the amount provided in the budget. Actual
expenditure is determined after the actual disbursement of bursaries.

(iii) Subsequent events
There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the
financial ttatements for the year ended June 30.2023.
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2022/2023 2021/2022
Note 5: Transfer from Ministry of Education (KES) (KES)

Unconditional (Recurrent) grants 628.750.182 628,865,333
Conditional (Capital) grants 27.601.454 7s,000,000
Tota I 656,351,636 703,865,333

Note 7: Rendering of services
Tuition fees 339.541.506 317.O47,200
Accomodation Fees 8,376.960 7.595,500

347.918,466 324,642,700

Catering 24.583.578 20,670,220
Total 372.502,O44 345,312,920

Note 8: Rental revenue
Residential and commercial 6,876.766 6,947,118
Total 6,876,766 6,947,118

Note 9: Farm revenue 15,405,010 14.685.845

Note l0: Finance income
lnterest from call deposits 4,414,818 4,458,875

4,444.818 4,458,875
Note ll: Research income
Research income 31302,8& 14,493,792

Add: Administrative fee - research grants 1,882,949 609.771

33,185,813 15,t03,563

Note I2: Hire of Facilities
Hire of Facilitier 1,470,429 980.787

Note l3: Graduation fee 5,410,000 5,937.ls0

Note l4: Library lncome
Library services 872,614 766,672

Note l5: lncome generating Units
lncome 6enerating 2,O14,O63 3,945,261

2.O14.O63 3,945,261

UN IVERsITY OF EMBU
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Notes to the Finacial Statements (continued)

2022/2023 2021/2022
Note l6: Other income (KEs) (KES)

Disposal of obsolete itemr 21.870 23.700
Miscellaneous income 2.336.736 1.765.912

Conference Income 35.723
Total 2,358,606 1,825,335

Note 17: Employee costs
House allowance r 50.806.203 150.876.020
House to office (Commutine AIl.) 46.541.423 46.115.O94
lnterns honoraria 5.261.684 4.844.681
Leave Travelling s.885.050 5.662.O79
National lnd' Training Authority 73.850 287.OOO
N55F 6.101.788 5.961.627
Part time teach ing 75.883.258 38.262.871
Pension 57.830.684 56.779.815
Responsibility allowance 38.273.709 38.O66.552
Salaries and waRes 364.725.830 397.218.876
Total 751,383,479 744,O74,615

Note 18: Remuneration of Council
Chancellor's honoraria 322.541
Chairman's honoraria 1.O44.OOO 1.0214.0OO

Council Capacitv buidinp 2.146.515 1.677.799
Council lnsurance 523.809 463.740
University Council's emoluments 7.360.086 8.403.093
Tota I 11,O74,410 1r,91 I ,213

Note l9: Repairs and maintenance
Maintenance of buildings 5.971.160 5.662.897
Maintenance of equipment 4.504,695 3.698.711
Maintenance of Erounds 3.947.112 4.173.O88
Maintenance of lnternal road 53.576 76.000
Total 14.476.543 13.610.696

Note 20: Research expenses
Research Erant expenses 30.957.543 47.654.994
Total 30,957,543 47,654,994
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Notes to the Finacial Statements (continued)

2022/2023 2021/2022
Note 2l: General expensej (KEs) (KES)
Ad vertisement and publicity r,oo3,528 3,136.450

ricultural Teaching & Research 626.aOO 294,2AO
Anti-HlV expenseJ and Health Ed. I l2.OOO t7t.o45
Asset Valuation 1,254,OO1
Audit fees 522.OOO 522,OOO
Bad debti write off 172.294
Bank charges 26a.592 260.64a
Board of Post Craduate studies 27.554 22.393
Celebration & ceremonies 1 ,897.O72 1,957.442
Cleaning & sanitary 1o,o57,645 11,O55.237
CIeaning materials 1,732,375 145,256
Conferences & seminars 470,594 965,443
Consultanry Services 329,O2o 1.461,Os5
Culfest 1.434,914
Customer RelationJ 14.500 14,500
Electricity 9,421,755 9,367,577
Exam Moderation and Supervision 4,091,O99 3.4A2.639
Exam Statione & related materials 4,244,224 3,294,195
Ex-gratia 93,570 84,O34
Exhibitions 238,r05 296,O25
Farm Enterprise 13,473,707 12,183,240
Field course 275_233 192,640
Food stuff & kitchen suppliet 33,330,171 30,77A,124
Cames & sports 2,192,342 1,521,151
6as & Charcoal 1,660,or l 1,178,O50
6raduation gowns 122,354
Honors and Awards l8.ooo
ICT expenses 1,679,533 I,801,326
lncome generating u nitt 2,406.363 4,947.904
lnsurance expenSes 7,354,966 6,803.O97
lnternational travel ex enset 3,802,729 1,206,242
lnternet expen5et 9,730,996 9,465,4AO
ISO expenses 923.41s 436.936
TVETI Expenses 836.219
Kitchenware,/cutle 382,310 65,925
Legal expenses 3,415,543 384,426
Library expenses 1,941,225 1,422,330
Local travel & subsistence 9.354,739 8,993,243
Management board 1,794.590 2,O93,723
Marketing services 24,OOO 1,514,203
Medical expenseJ 25,129,632 24,OO4,096
Membership subs ton 287,68A 153,792
Non-pharmaceuticalj 1,092,587 1,366,285
Other office expenses 1.445,O52 2,254,aO7
Performance mana ement 3,385,474 3,066,700
Pharmaceuticals 7,774,9a9 7,559,640
Posta e 92.505 97,831
Printi hotoco ublishin & 733,432 1,125,399
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Notes to the Finacial Statements (continued)

2022/2023 2021/2022
(KES) (KES)

Programme & facilities accreditation 950.000 2.670.OOO
Protective gear 52.396 91.414
Public relations 259.801 1.070.855
Quality assurance 48.303 50.250
Quality Placement & Jervices 4.293.804 8,5rO.000
School of Law Expenses 368.58s 218.792
Schools and programme devt costs 277.491 304.O85
5ecurity 7.021.462 5.O95.970
Staff training, Development & Scholarship 778.O29 1.227.948
Staff uniform 206.700 I13.130
Sraff \xy'elfa re 1.681.626 1.274.OOO
Stationery expenseJ 6.214.255 4.807.399
Student awards & bu rsaries 2.s00.000
Student welfare & mentorship 3.104.945 1.069.725

2.020.257TeachinE materials 2,588.388
Teaching Practice & Practicum 4,468.760 6.461.524
Telephone 577.900 528.900
Transport operating 9,255,558 6.938.962
University Senate 3.443.694
Water & conservancy 3.98r.8s9 5.654.749
Total general expenses 218,501,453 217,992,505

Note 22: Other gain/(loss) (2O1,78O) (r,6ro,23o)
This represents the difference between the value of the biological assetr at the beginning
and at the end of the financial year
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Notes to the Finacial Statement, (continued)
2022/2023 2021/2022

Note 23! Cash and cash equivalents KES KE5
Current accou nts 142.599.063
Student Pa bi - A,/c 4t 88aa
Farm Pa bill 414444
Libra bu 6oods

112.541.655
42.93a 303.720

29.769
496.861 67.970

Endownment Paybill 233320 72.360
Staff Cafeteria Buy goods

172.360
2,369 102.746

Bottled \Water buy goods o 130
Cleaning Solutions buy goods (o) 66
Animal Feeds Buy Coods number 245296 1.204 o
General purpose 2.449
Yoghurt Processing 2,176 2.513
Alumni Paybill 4037347 12,O40 12,o40
Rent paybill |,060,755 32,100
Farm Buy Coods 34o.463 30,714
Mess I Buy Goods (o) 155.393
Mess 2 Buy 6oods 1,720 137.15A
Mess 3 Bu Coods
Total 144.774,399 1r3,52A,356

Detailed analysls of cash and cash equlwalents
a) Current accounts
Financial lnstltutlon
Absa Fees A/C 2027 527410 1s.393.666 16.406
Co-o Fees - A,/C O\1294O8325OOO 27.34O 22,222

Bank Farm A,/c O\9O2AO25O779E uit 1,542,OO1 781,O92
Equity Bank Research O19O2AO2O7539 2,913.634 132.O81
Equity Bank Retention O19O28O2O7 5O9 36,711,326 55.O31,Or9

Endowment A/C 01 9027 90 52AO3E uit 41,217,410 34.279-7 54
Fees - A,/C 0190260737294E uit 35,937.AO3 l.509,a60

KCB - EURO A,/C 2,1o8 I,1I8,7a5
KCB Dollar - A/< 1146975716 4.573.100 4,439.aA7
KCB Fees - A/C 1140A46019 1,694,214 a5,9AA
KCB Sala 1141490933 2,447,90a 7,159.37A
NBK Fees - A,/C OlOOlO8l2593OO 134,513 5.184
sub- total 142,599,O63 I l2.5at,655

b) Others
Student Paybill number 4188a8 42.938 303.720
Farm Pa bill number 414444 29,769
Endownment Fund Pa ill number 233320 172.360 72.360
Library Buy 6oods numLrer 271941 496.461 67.970
Staff Cafeteria B Goods number 245292 2.369 102,746
Cleanin Solutions Bu coods number 245299 (o) aa
Animal Feeds Buy Goods number 245296 't,204 o.30
Bottled U9ater 8A8O32 o 130

6oods number 245294Yo hurt Bu 2,176 2.513
Alumni Pa bi'| 4037347 12,o40 12,O40
Commercial Rent a bilt 1.O60.755 32-100
Farm Buy Coods 380,463 30,714
Mess 1 Bu 6oods (o) 155.393
Mess 2 Bu 6oods 1.720 137,158
Mess 3 Buy 6oods
6eneral ur ose 414444 2,449

Sub- total 2,17 5,336 946,701
144,774,399 113,528,356GRAND TOTAL
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Notes to the Finacial Statements (continued)

2022/2023 202'l/2022
(KEs) (KES)

Note 24: Receivables from exchange transactions
Catering income receivable 252.176 1.386.850
Farm income receivable r09.938 43.968
Fees receivable r 6.785.888 32.O59.832
Hire of Facilities Receivable 56.000

17.204.OO2 33,490,650

Note 25: Receivables from non-exchange transactions
5taff debtors (temporary imprests) 1.420.759 1.r 60.520
Staff debtors (Research imprest) s.o30.256 1.937.703
6oK development grants receivable 10.10r.454
Total receivables from non-exchange
tranJactions

16.552.469 3,O98,223

Note 26: lnventories
Accom modation 217.587 529.181

Cleaning solutions 837.375 654.622
Farm 601.555 821.570
Food store 416.419 3s8.728
Hardwa re 515.101 628.709
Health U nit 1.742.864 3.O82.862
Laboratory 3.246.438 3.284.422
5tationery 428.133 1.O78.799

Water Bottling 61.O78 21.304
Yoghurt processing 169.761 98.924
Total 8,236,311 10,559,121
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Notes to the Finacial Statements (continued)

Note: 1) KES748.433.78t Capital Work in pro8re, ir the total co,t of the on-Eoing .apital projects a, ,ollow
Tuition Blod - KEi 663.959.197
Auditorium - KES 53,719.258
Minor workr KEs 30,755,316
Total - KES 748,433,781

TOTAL

3.422 860 171

146.097.28s
539,653 289

4 108.620.7 45

9.2r9

4.227 .839 924

340,632 3t I

56.5 09, 8

6l

46 8,96 5,806

3,758,87 4.1221

3 701 479,315

824.376

Note 27 lant and ea : Pro e ment

Land BulldlnE Motor Vehicle Futniture &
Ftt

Computer &
hardware

Llbrery bookr
E u ment
Plaht and Bearer plantt

ret,P

Capit.l ln

Cort h Kt Kr Kt Krh Kt KrhAt at ltt Ju 2021 I 200.000 000 711l.r8l 58 r03 154 856 9l 056 720 89 o67 743 66 7 oo4 144 128 t04 I 388 820 546 420 213Addltiont 7.395.000 9 r59.609 2.436.17 5 2 o44,459 12,026.559 1.179.950 1I,85 5.5 33Revrlu!tlon 600.000.000.00 60,336.711
Transferc 4.72 829

4.720,829At 3oth June 2022 l 800.000.oo0 125,970.829 t10.549.856 l0o.216.329 91.503.918 58.10r.453 156.154.663 2 568,770 653 554 917T.anrfe 4,7 65.Ot6 4 755.O16Addiliont 63.8507 2 774.466 4 471 591 172 744 488 500 99.643.aaoRevaluation
At !t June 2023 I ooo800 oo0 130 735 845 lt0 s49 456 107 880 189 94 242 384 72 573 o56 160 447 3 057 748 433 781reciation rateDe 0% 2.50 25.00q6 I2.50% 30.o0q6 20.0o% 12.50% t0.00%At Ju 2021 54 813 496 75 841 136 38 437 704 72 545 45 923 538 s3,132 901 271 452
De 26,778_933 8.677.180 7.722 128 5 747 700 4.435.565 12.877.720 229.5922022At 30th June 8l s92 429 a4 518 316 46,t 60 032 999 285 50 3 5 9,203 66 0to.62l 50t,5 44 407 141.43025 228.585 6 507.885 7 715.024 4 884.930 442 771 37A9 255 583A, at 30th June .

2023 107.821.015 9r.026,20r 53 ,87 5,052 82.A84,214 54,801.974 77,800,225 757,126
Net book valuet
A, at 3oth June.
2023 r.800,000.000 r.022.9r4.830 r 9,52 3.65 5 54,OOs,t?7 I t,398.r 70 17,771.043 42.527 ,222 2,300,244 748.433.781
tu !t 30th June, 2022 I 800.000 0oo 044.37A 400 54026 031 54,056 29? 13.504 633 17 7 42,260 90 t44.041 2 o67 226 553 9)7
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Notes to the Finacial Statements (continued)

Valuation
Land and buildings/ Equipment were valued by Laser Property Services in line with the National
Assets and Liabilities Management Policy and Cuidelines (issued 3O,h June 2020). The assets
were revalued on this date 29'h June, 2022. fhese amounti were adopted by the Board on l5'h
September, 2022, wilh concurrence from the National Treasury.

27 (b) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost
lf the land. buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts would
be as follows:

Description Cost
KES

Accumulated
Depreciation

KE5

NBV
KE5

Nil r.800.000.000Land

Bu ildin 5

1.800.oo0.000
1.130.735.845 107.821.O15

Plant And Machine 160.327.447 77.8OO.225 82.527.222
Motor Vehicles, lncludin Motorc cles 1r0.589.856 19.563.655

Bea rer lant5

Ca ital in ro resJ 748.433.781 nil 748.433.781

Total 4,227,879,928 468,965,806 3,758.914,122

Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully depreciated:

Description

Cost or valuation
Plant and Machinery

Motor Vehicles including Motorcycles

Total 't94,767,304

1.O22.914.830

91,026.201
Computers And Related Equipment 94.282.384 82,884.213 11.398.171

Furniture, And Fittings 107.880.189 53.875.O52 54.OO5.137

Library Books 72.573.O56 54.801.974 17.771.O82

3.O57.370 757.126 2.300.244

Normal annual
depreciation charge

19.312.963 2.414.120

19.701.097

20.867.078

78.804.386
Computers and Related Equipment 69.556.928
Office Equipment. Furniture and Fittings 27.O93.O27 3.386.628

46,368,923
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2022/2023 2021/2022
Note 28 (i): Biologlcal assets (current) (KE5)

Cabbases 3.431 34.310.00 52.500
Capsicum 7.200 42.OOO

Carrots 1.000

Cow peas 3.O00

Dhania 5.000
Ensiled Maize 900.000
Fish 80.o00
Garden peas 20.000
Gourgette 16 2.400 24.OOO

Gre€n maize 3.325 49,875 9.000
Ka les 45.940 ll2.500
Manasu (Blad nisht shade) 224 6.720 5.O00
Onions 2.465 12.325 50.000
Pips 0
5ilage maize 20 actes 900.000 r50.000
5pinach 365 10.950 75.O00
Spider plant 1.500

Sweet potatoet 5.000
Vesetable Seedlings (Arsorted) 7 seedbeds 66.600 35,000
5ub-tot8l 1.136.320 1,57t,500

Note 28 (ll); Biologlcal assetr (Non-current)
Cows 30 4.430.000 4.250.OOO

Chicken (layer, 57.800
Chicken (Broilers) 1.O48 471.600 0
lmproved Kienyeii Chicken l0 r0.100 0
Goats l3 168.000 214,OQQ

Ram I rs.000 0
Pies 98 868.000 1,207,500
Bananas 822 246.600 246.600
Napier grasJ 5 acrel 300.000 250.O00
Boma Rhodes 50,000

6,509,300 6,275,900

(lli) Bearer plantt
Avocado5 78 780.O00 780.OO0

Mangoes t4t 705.000 705.000
Macadamia l8 36.OOO 180.000
Coffee stumps 19.O25 1.536.370 903.770
5ub-total 3,O57,370 2,56A,770

Notes:
Bearer plants are living plantJ used in the supply of agricultural produce and are expected to produce for
more than one financial year, and hal a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce. Bearer plants

are accounted for as Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciated at the rate of l0olo

UNIVERSITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE. 2023

Quantitiet
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Note 29: lntangible Assets ERP System
ERP work in

p roSreJs 2022/2023 2021/2022
Description (KES) (KEs) (KES)
Cost
At beginning of the year 13.715.500 l3.71s.soo 17.341.960.OO
Add itions
At end of the year r 3,715,500 13.715.500 17,341,960.OO
Add it ions-interna I development
Cheque Reversal
At end of the year 13.71 5.500 13,715,sOO 17,341,960

Amortization and impairment 33o/o 33o/o
At beginning of the year 4.571.833.33 4.s71.833
Amortization
At end of the year 4,571,833 4.571.833

At end of the year 4.571.833 4.571,833
Net Book Value 9,143,667 9,143,667 "t7,341,960.OO
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2022/2023 2021/2022
Note 3O: I nvestments (KES) (KES)

As at the end of FY under review, the University did not have any investmentJ in treasury

bills/bonds, investments in any bank or any equity investment

Note 31: Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
PAYE Payable 12,758.788
N ITA payable 287,OOO

Trade payables - Part time teaching 23.148.852
Trade payables - Tuition block 13,957,478
Provison for salary arrears 143.096,375 96,426,917

180,202,705 1o9,472,705

Note 32: Payables from non-exchange transaction,
Alumni Association 5,808,790 4,712,790
Deferred research grant 15,971,752 15,626,431

Endowment Fund 41.998.989 38,279,754
Seized Performannce bond 4,040,503 4.O40.503
Student Union subscription - UESA 6,243,633 6,252,482
Students'clubs 19,060 r9,060
Unclaimed deposits 3,144,497 3.030.879
Vice-Chancellor's Fund 446.448 595,264
Total 77,673,672 72,557,163

Note 33: Refundable deposits from customers
Rental deposits 984.849 937,614

Note 34: Provision for audit fee
Balance b/f 1,566,000 1,566,000
Add: Provision for the year 522.OOO

Less: Payments during the year (r.044,000)
1.044,000 1,566,000

Note 35: Payment received in advance
Deferred fees 7,232,446 1,156,Os5

Note 36: Bursary fund 10.862.620 8,008.r63
This is a fund that was created by the University from which bursaries to the needy students
are drawn.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2022/2023 2021/2022
(KEr) (KES)

Note 37: Caution Money 24,O51,974 21,282.OOO
These are refundable funds paid by all new studenti to cushion the Universit y against any
Ioss/dama e the studentr to ro ert . The amount is refunded after the student clears
from the Universit

Note 38: Retention mon 32,804,O16 50,o64,940
This comprises of monev deducted from payments to contractors to cater for any defects
on the construction work undertaken.

Note 39: CBA Refund 8l,560,OO0 8t,s60,ooo
CBA refund represents the balance of Ksh 106 million received in the FYs 20l2/2013 and
2Ol3/2O14 for CBA implementation. At that time the University war new and did not have
CBA arrears to pay. The amount was reallocated to other University votes, and spent. The
Minist of Ed. later directed that the mon be refunded to other Universities. Ksh 24.44
million was refunded, leaving the above balance.

Note 40: Borrowings
The University did not have any borrowing during the financial vear.

Note 4l: Employee benefit obligations
Defined
benefit

plan (KES)

Post-
employment
medical
benefits (KES)

Other
Provisions

(KES)
2022nO23

(KEs)
2021nO22

(KE')
Current obligation Nit Nit Nit 143.096.375 96.426.917
Non-current

obligation
benefit Nil Nil Nit Nil Nil

Total employees obligations Nil Nit Nil 143.096.375 96,426,917
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Notes to the Financial Statementi (continued)

Note 42: Cash generated from operations
5u rplus/(deficit) for the year before tax 7.849.837 (46.835.636)

Adjusted for:
Provision for salary arrea rs 46.669.458 68,541,935
Lossl(6ain) on valuation of bioloRical assets 201.780 1.610.230
Depreciation & amortization 65.396.210 66,509.119
Provision for bursary 2,500,o00
Provision for audit fee 522.OOO 522,OOO

Amortized grant (26.550.91O) (27,698,876)
87,238,538 111,984.407

Ad justed surplus 9s,o88,37s 65.148.771
Workins Capital ad justments:
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 2,832,402 5,593,O50
(lncrease)/decrease in inventory 2,322,810 193.119

Decrease/(ncrease) in biological assets 435.180
lncrease/(decrease) in payables 29.177,O5t 23,670,696
lncrease/(decrease) in refundable deposits 47,235 5.O00
Increase/(decrease) in audit fee payable (s22.OOO)

lncrease/(decrease) in payment received in advance 6.O76.391 (380,909)
lncrease/(decrease) in bursary fund 2.854.457 1.479.618
lncrease/(decrease) in overdrawn account (5,921.979)

43,223,526 24,638,595
Net cash flow from operating activities 138.311.901 89,787,366
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Note 43: Deferred lncome

Other Grants
oK

Development
grants from the Total

Equipment Library books
(KES) (KEs) (KE5) (KES)

Balance as at 1sl )ulv.2022 1.354.O54.426 8.650.752 1.368.O96.856
Additions 27.601.454 27.601.454
Amortization for the period (24.146.8OO) (67 3.960| (1.730.15O) (26 .55O .91O)
Balance as at 30th June,2023 r,3s7,509,080 6,920,602 1,369,147 ,401

Note 44: Amortization of deferred Erants (Completed p roiects)
Other Grants

Description
Development

grants from the
GoK Equipment Library books

TOTAL

Cost (Ksh) (Ksh) (Ksh) (Ksh)
Ar at lst Julv,2022 1.O37.877 .O45 12-O13.667 33.000.o00 1.O82.890.712
Additionr

Transfer from WIP
Ar at 3oth June, 2023 't.o37 .877 .O45 12,O13,667 33.000,000 1.082.890.7t2

Amortization rate 2-5Oolo l2.5Oo/o 2Oo/o
Ar at lst July, 2022 72,OO5,061 6,621,990 24,349,248 1o2,976,299
Ar at 30th )une, 2022 72.00s.061 6.621.990 24.349.248 102,976,299

r,730,150 26,550,91OAdd: Amortization for the period I

1As at 30th )une, 2023
24,146,800

96.151.860
67 3,960

7 .295.949 26.079.398 129,527 ,208

Balance as at 3Oth June,2023 941,725.185 4,717,718 6,920,602 953,363,504
Balance ar at 3Oth June,2022 965,471,984 5,391,677 8,650,752 979,914,413

2022/2023 2021/2022
Note 45: Revaluation Reserve (KEs) (KES)

Balance b/f 1.866.688.262 1.866,688.262

Note 46: Revenue reierves
Balance b/f 302.328.807 349.164.444
Current/(defi cit) surplus 7.849.837 (46.835.636)
Balance df 310,178,644 302.328.807
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Notes to the Finacial Statements (continued)

Note 47: Contingent Liability
The table below contains cases that were ongoing in Court during the period under review.
and which the University may have a contingent liability on. Actual liability for each case will
be determined after the case is heard and finally determined.

5/No. Estimated contingent liability
1 University of Embu vs. Lillian

Wanyaga Njagi
Will be determined after the appeal is heard
and finally determined.

Dr. Philip Wafula Mayeku vs
University of Embu

Will be determined once the case is heard
and finally determined.

3 Benson Muia Mumo vs. University
of Embu

Will be determined once the case is heard
and finally determined.

4 Daniel Warui Mwaura vs.
University of Embu

Will be determined once the case is heard
and finally determined.

5 Daniel Mutwiri Citonga vs.
University of Embu

Will be determined once the case is heard
and finally determined.

6 Geoffrey Onala Wanyanga vs.
University of Embu

Will be determined once the case is heard
and finally determined.

(i) Mrs. Lilian Njagi sued the University of Embu seeking damages for alleged wrongful
termination of employment. The University has appealed to the Court of Appeal against the
decision of the High Court.

(ii) Dr. Philip Wafula Mayeku sued the University seeking damages for alleged unlawful
termination of employment. The matter is in the Employment at Labour Relations Court in
Nairobi.

(iii) Benson Muia Mumo sued the University seeking compensation in a road traffic accident
claim against the University.

(iv) Daniel Warui Mwaura sued the University seeking compensation in a road traffic accident
claim against the University.

(v) Daniel Mutwiri Gitonga tued the University seeking compenration in a road traffic accident
claim against the University.

(vi) Ceofrey onala wanyaga sued the university seeking compensation in a road traffic
accident claim against the University.

ln addition to the above cases, a contract between the University M/5 supreme Developers
Limited for the construction of the proposed auditorium and lecture classroom at a cost of KES.

4O,4O5,O2O was terminated in the month of February 2021 due to unsatisfactory performance
by the Contractor. The matter it currently before an arbitrator who shall determine the liability
of either party.

Parties
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Note 48: Financial Risk management
The University's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity,
and effects of foreign currency changes and changes in market prices. The University's overall
risk management focuses on u npred ictability of changes in business environment and seeks to
minimize the potential adverse effects of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. The University does not hedge any risks. and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is extended to students and staff with an established credit history.

ln management of risks, University of Embu Management has put in place an internal audit
function to a55i5t it in assessing risks faced by the University on an ongoing basis, and also in
evaluating and teJtinS the design and effectiveness of existing internal accounting and
operational controls. The University's financial risk management objectives and policies are
detailed below:

(i) Credit risk
Credit rilk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations when
due. resulting to financial loss to the University. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables, and: available for
sale financial investments.

University's credit risk is primarily attributable to its fee revenue receivable. The amount
presented in the Statement of Financial Position is gross amount expected from students. No
provision has been made for doubtful debts. Thi5 is mainly because the Higher Education Loans
Board (HELB) has been financing majority of our student through loans. with tuition
component of the loans being remitted directly to the University bank account. resulting to no
bad debts. The credit risk on liquid funds with financial institutions is low, because UoEm banks
its monies with reputable banks.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements repreJenting the
University's maximum exposure to credit risk is made up of the following:

Credit rirk management
Fully

performing
( KE5)

Past due
(KES)

lmpaired
(KES)

Total
ammount

(KEs)
As at 30th )une, 2022
Receivable from exchange transactionj 32.103.800 1.386.850 33.490.650
Receivable from non-exchange transactions 3.O98.223 3.O98,223
Bank balances 113.528.356 113.528.356
Total 148,730,379 r,385.850 150,117,229

Ar at 3oth )une, 2023
Receivable from exchange transactionJ 17,204,OO2 17.204.OO2
Receivable from non -exchange transactions 16.552.469 16.552.469
Bank balances 144.774.399 144,774,399
Total 178,5 30,870 178,530,870
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University's fee payment policy requires payment of fees within the first three weeks of a

semester. Where the student is not able to pay fee within the first three weeks of the Jemester,

they are required to either call off the semester, or apply for phased fee payment. where fee is

paid in three instalments. No student is allowed to sit for examination with a fee balance, unless

with a written commitment to pay by a specified date. Consequently, students' receivables are

categorized as past due. Past due amountJ are those beyond the maximum established credit
period and represent slow. but paying Jtudents.

(ii) Concentration risk

The reported receivables from fees wholly relate to balances due from the students who are

unrelated. thus there is no concentration risk.

(iii) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management restr with the University Management,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the University's short. medium and long-term funding, and liquidity management
requirements. University of Embu manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking facilities and
through continuous forecasts and monitoring of actual cash flows. Prudent liquidity risk
manaSement includes maintaining sufficient cash to meet the University's obligations.
University of Embu management reviews its cash forecasts regularly and determines the
University's cash requirement. However, the University as a government funded institution.
faces the risk of inadequate andlor delayed funding by the National Treasury. This implies that
sometimes the University operates with insufficient cash to cater for operational costs and
obligations. on timely basis. The table that follows analyses the University's financial liabilities.
into relevant maturity groupings, based on the remaining period at the end of the financial
year to the contractual maturity. The reported balances equal their carrying amounts, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.
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Liquidity rirk m anaE ement
The table below analyJer the Univertity t financial liabilitier into relevanl maturity groupingr. ar at 3Oth June.2O23

As at 3oth June 2022
Lest than I

month
Between 1-3

month5 Over 3 months Tota I

Provirion for salary arrears 96.426_917 96.426.917
Deferred Research Rrants 15.626.431 15.626.431
Vice-Chancellor'r Fund 595.264 595.264
UESA Subrcription 6.252.482 6,252,482
Studenti clubt r9.060 19.o60
Unclaimed deposit 3.O30.879 3.O30.479
Allumni attociation 4-712-790 4-712-790
Endowment fund 34.279.754 38.279.754
Seized Performannce bond 4.O40.503 4.O40.503
Renta I deporits 937.614 937.614
Provision for audit feej 1.566.OO0 l.566.OOO
Deferred fee income 1.r56.055 r.156.055
Studentr'burJary fund 8,OO8. r 63 8.OO8.163
Caution Money 21.242_OOO 21.282.OOO
CBA refund Br.560.OOO 81.560.OOO
Retention on con5tructiont 50.064.940 50.064.940
Deferred income r.368.096.856 r.368.096.856
PAYE Payable 12.754.744 12.758.7A4
NITA payable 2A7.OOO 2A7.OOO
TotEl 13,O45,74A 1.701.655.704 1.714.701.496

As 8t 3Oth June 2023
Lerr than I

month
Between l-3

months Over 3 months Tota I

Proviiion for salary arreart 143.096,375 143.096,375
Deferred Research grants 15.971.752 15.971.7 52
Vice-Chancellor'( Fun.l 446.448 446.444
UE5A Subscriptio n 6.243.633 6.243.633
5tudenti'clubt t9.o50 r9.060
Unclaimed deporit 3.144.497 3.144.497
Allumni artociation 5,80A.790 s.aoa.790
Endowment fund 41,994,949 41.994,949
5eized Performannce bond 4.O40.503 4.O40.503
Rental deposits 944.449 944.449
Provision for audit feer r.o44,ooo l.o44,ooo
Deferred fee income 7.232.446 7.232,446
5tudentJ'bursary fund 10.862,620 1o,462.620
Caution Money 24-Ost -974 24.O51.974
CBA refund 8r.560.O00 81.560.OOO
Retention on co nrtructions 32.4O4.O16 32.4O4.016
Deferred income 1.369.147.401 1.369.147.401
Unpaid certificate for Tuition Block 13.957.474 13.957.478
Unpaid part-time teachins 23.148.852 23.144.452
Total 1.7A5.563.6A2 1.7a5.563.642

(iv) Market risk
Market risk is the risk ariJing from changes in market prices, such as interest rate. equity prices

and foreiSn exchanSe rater which will affect the University's income or the value of its holding
of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Overall
responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Rirk Management Committee.

Page 7l of 8l



ANNUAL REpoRr AND FrNANchYllrv^j+srllEYrflrt#*tY", 
"roo 

ENDED 3orH ruNE' 2023

lnternal Audit Department is responJible for the development of detailed risk management

policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee) and for

the day to day implementation of those policies. There has been no change to the University's

exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign exchange risk
University of Embu has transactional currency expotures. Such exposures arise through purchase

of goods and services that are done in foreign currencies. lnvoices denominated in foreign

currencies are paid within 30 days from the date of the invoice and conversion at the time of
payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying amount of the University's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Other currencies Total
Dollars
(usD)

Euros (KES)

At 3O June, 2022
Financial assets (cash) 4.573,100 2.r08 4,578.208

Net foreign cu rrency asset/
(liability)

Nit Nit

Price risk
Embu University does not holds quoted shares that would be subjected to price risk.

lnterest rate risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the University's financial condition may be adversely affected

as a result of changes in interest rate levels. The interest rate risk arises from bank deposits. This

exposes University of Embu to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises

mainly from interest rate movements on bank deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk. the Management has endeavored to bank with institutions

that offer favourable interest rates.

Capital risk manaSement

The objective of the University's capital risk management is to safeguard the University's ability
to continue as a going concern. The capital structure of the University of Embu comprises of
the following funds:

2022/2023 2021/2022
(KE5) (KEs)

Revaluation reserve 1.866,688,262 1.866.688,262

Revenue reterves 310,178.644 302.328.807

Total funds 2.176.866.906 2,169,O17,069
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Total bor rowtnsS r- - \r1L Nit
144.774.399 113.528.356
144.774.399 113.528.356

Nil Nit

Less: Cash and bank balances
Net debt,/(elqe,sffq4 4{_c9f! 9Sq!y919!Q _
Gearing _l

Note 49: Related party disclosures
Entities and other parties related to the University include parties who have ability to exercise
control or significant influence over University'5 operating and financial decisions. The
following are the related parties that UoEm dealt with during the year under review:

1) Government of Kenya
2) University Chancellor
3) University Council
4) University Management

Related party transactions

(i) Covernment of Kenya
Transaction with the 6overnment of Kenya

Nature of transaction Amount in 2022/2023 (KES) Amount in 2021/2022 (KES)
Transfer from the CoK 656.351.636 703.865.333
Transfer to the 6oK Nit Nil

(ii) University Council.
During the year under review. the University Chancellor and the Council Chairperson. received
remuneration on full-time equivalent basis. Details of their remuneration are displayed below:

S/no.

I University Chancellor
rJr PevPls

1 322.581
2 Universit Council expenses 9 r0.030.410 10.544.632
3 Chairman - on full time e uivalent 1

'i.044,000 1.O44.O00
11,911,213

Category N
of le KES

umber 2022/2023 2021/2022
KES

TOTAL 11,O74,410

(iii) Due from related parties

Nature of transaction Amount in2022/2023 Amount in 2O2'l/2O22
(KES)(KEs

Dues from the Minist of Education
Dues from staff
Dues from students r 6.785.888 32.O59.832

(iv) Dues to related party

14].O96.37s

10.101.454 NiI
6.451.O15 3.O98,223

Nature of transaction Amount in 2022/2023 (KES) Amount in 2021/2022 (KES)

5a la arrears
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Note 5O: Segment reporting
University of Embu does not have operations in different geographical regions. All operations
are conducted in the registered office.

Note 5l: Capital commitments
The University did not have any commitments at the end of the year under review' which
were carried forward to the next financial year.

Note 52: Ultimate and Holding entity
UoEm is a Semi-Autonomous Government ASency under the Ministry of Education. lts ultimate
parent is the Government of Kenya.

Note 53: Currenqy
The financial itatementi are presented in Kenya Shilling (KES).

Page74 ofBl



UNIVER5ITY OF EMBU
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3OTH JUNE, 2023

APPENDIX l: lmplementation Status of Auditor-General's Recommendations

The following issues were raised by the Auditor General in the report for the financial year
2021/2022. and were all addressed:

5/No. lssues

Delayed Construction of
Auditorium and Lecture
Classroom

Status
r)

Resolved

2) Non-Compliance with Fiscal

Responsibilities Principles -
Compensation of Employees

Marketing of University to attract more
students. This will increase revenues and
lower the percentage of employee cost on the
total revenue.

ln addition, the new funding model for
universities which was operationalised with
effect from the FY 2023/2024, is expected to
benefit the University immensely, because
every student will be paying course fee at the
prevailing market cost. The University will
attain compliance within the next four years
when all our students will be under the new
model.

Not
Resolved

3) CBA Refund to the Ministry
of Education

Funding to the University has .been
inadequate since inception. The University has
been totally unable to pay the parent ministry
KES 81.56 million.
The University wrote to the Ministry seeking
writing off of the outstanding debt.

Not
Resolved

Action taken
The pro,iect was completed

Prof. Daniel Mugendi Njiru
VICE.CHANCELLOR
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE UNIVERSITY OF EMBU

Projects implemented by the University of Embu funded by the dwelopment partners and or
the Govemment

The only externally funded project that was undertaken by the University during the year under
review is the ongoing Tuition Block. The Project is funded by the 6oK, through development
Srants.

Project
title

Project
number

Donor Period/Duration Donor
commltment

Separate
reporting
requlred
as per the
donor
aSreement
(Yes/No)

Consolldated
ln these
ffnandal
rtatements
(Yes/!o)

Tuition
Block

N/A Funded
by the
GoK

On-going N/A N/A Yes
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APPENDIX lll: Status of proiects completion

5/No. Proiect

Totsl prorect
Con
(KEs)

Total expenfu
to date

(KEs)
Completlon
96 to date

Budget
(KE5)

Actual
(KEs)

Sources
l. Tuition

Block
899.O35.682 642.7 58,288 85o/o 67.000.000 64.478.068 (loK

2 Auditorium 39.938.440 39,938.440 lOQo/o 4.265.610 4.265.610 A-in.A
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APPENDIX lV: RECORDING OF TRANSFERS FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

Total
Transfers
during the
Year

Name of the
MDA,/Donor
Transferring
the funds

Date
received as
per bank
statement

Where Recorded,/reco ized
Nature:
Recurrent/
Development/
Others

Total
Amount -
KES

Statement
of Financial
Performance

Capital
Fund

Deferred
capital

Srants

Receivables

Others
- must
be
specific

Ministry of
Education

03/o8/2022 Recurrent 52,395.849 52.395.849
0B/o9/2022 Recurrent 52.395.849 s2,395,849
30/09/2022 Development r 7.500,000 17,500.000
03/10/2022 Recurrent 52.395.847 52.395,847
10/11/2022 Recurrent 52.395.849 s2.395,849
09/12/2022 Recurrent 52,395.849 52,395,849
30/12/2022 Recurrent s2.395.848 52.395.848
03/o2/2023 Recurrent 52.395,849 52.395.849
17/03/2023 Recurrent 52,395.849 52,395,849
14/04/2023 Recurrent 52.395.840 52,395.840
os/05/2023 Recurrent 52,395.851 52.395.851
09/06/2023 Recurrent 52,395,851 52.395.851
27/06/2023 Recurrent 52.395.851 52.395.8s1
o4/o7/2023 Development 10,101,454 10,101.454

Total 656.3s1,636 656,351,636
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APPENDIX V: INTER-ENTITY CONFIRMATION LETTER

coNFIRMATION OF AMOUNTS RECEIVED BY UNIVERSITY OF EMBU A5 AT 3OTH JUNE, 2023

Amounts disbursed by the Ministry of Education as at 30,h )une, 2023

Reference
number

Fr2221559tG6

Date
disbursed

(KEs)

Recurrent
(KEs)

Development
(KEs)

TOTAL (KES)

(D A + B +

FT22251FP]JJFS o8/09/2022
FT2227323WQ1 30/09/2022
Fr2227 6QCSRC I OZ/tO/zOzz
FT22314OLOFH 10/11/2022
FT22343QQY51 09/12/2022
FT22354CSBP5 30/12/2022
FT23O341BFPY o3/02/2023

(A)

03/08/2022 52.395.849

52,395.848
s2.395.849

52.39s.849
52.395.849

6s6,351,636

FT23076HRQgR 17/O3/2023
FT23l04M8Y35 14/O4/2023
Fr23125VBY49 0s/0s/2023
FT231606CD8) 09/o6/2023 52.395.851
FT23178TZVYY 27/06/2023 52,395,851
FT231851FX23 04/o7/2023

I confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated

I.AWRENCE KAMONJO
HEAD OF FINANCE

lnter-
Mininerial

(KEs)

(c)

Amount received
by the University

of Embu as at
30th June, 2023

KES)

(E)

Difference
(KEs)

(F)=(D)-(E)
s2.395.849

s2.395.849 52.395.849
17,500.000 17.500.000

52.395.847 52.395.847
r7,500,000
52.395.847

52.395.849 52,395,84952.395.849
52.395.849 52.395.849

52.395.848
52.395.849

52.395.849

52.395.849 52.395.849

52.395.848
52.395.849

52.395.849
52.395.840 52.395.84052.395.840

52.395.851 52.395.851 s2.395.851
52.395.851
52,395,851

r0.10'r.454

52.395.851
52.395.851

r0.101.454
628,750,182 27,601,454

10.10r.454

656,3sl,636

Signature:
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APPENDIX Vl: REPORTING OF CLTMATE RELEVANT EXPENDffiJRES

Projea
name

Project
desoiption

Project
objectives

Prorect
activlties

Quarter
Sources of
funds

lmplementing
partner:sQr a2 Q3 a4

Tree
planting

Purchase of
trees

To increase the
forest cover
within the
University and
its surrounding

Purchase

of trees

Planting of
trets

45.750 24.420 250.000 A-I-A
1) County
2) 6overnment of
Embu
Young Farmers
Kenya

Carbage
management

Garbage
collection
and
disposal

To ensure that
garbage
management is

handled in an
environmentally
friendly
manner.

6arbage
collection
and
disposal

171.000 207.OOO 233,400 205.212 A.I.A Josky General
Suppliers
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APPENDIX Vll: REPORTING ON DISASTER MANAGEMENT EXPENDITURE

column I Column ll

Fire fighting

Road iafety
Training for
defensive
driving
facilitation
for drivers

grammePro

Column lll Column lV Column V Column Vl Column Vll

Sub-
Programme Disaster type

Category of disaster related
activity that require expenditure
reporting (Response/recovery/
mitigation /preparedneJs)

Expenditure item Amount (KES) Comments

l) Training
on basic
safety fire
incident
command
syJtem.
2) Servicing
of fire
extinguishers.
alarm system
and purchase
of fire
blankets

Preparedness

l) Staff training
and development
2) Maintenance

r,r 5 3,l5o

The University
takes the risk of
fire seriously, and
ensureJ that
necessary
firefighting
equipment are in
good working
condition.

Road accident

Fire

Preparedness

Staff training and
development
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